Shaltiir & Fitw Associales LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THEMEMBERS OF
VERITAS POLYCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s Veritas Polychem
Private Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017,
the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and

a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infoxmation.
MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 13403) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or exrov.

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Aucliting specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditox's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditoy
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate intemal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company's directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31,2017, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of oux
audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Compang sofarasit appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, ‘2014;

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBAI - 400 062.
TEL.: 2872 0555 /2873 9939 ¢ CIN No. AAC-2949 ¢ shabbir.rita@snrllp.com ® www.snrllp.com



g vy i 7~ - v 7 oA

] 157 25 - r, r S 77 /; AA 072757 £/ Y, 7 Y 4
SIS ¥ bl SLIICC LU LE) SLSL e/

I hhir e Pitr Assnnsodos PPP
—

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31,2017, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directoxs
is disqualified as on Maxch 31, 2017, from being appointed as a director in ternas
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in Annexure A

8) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

(i) The Compang has made provision, as required under the app]ical:le
law or accounting standards, for material foresecable losses, if any,
and as required on long—term contracts including derivative
contracts.

(ii) There were no amounts which were requirecl to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company,

(i)  The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its financial
statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank
Notes during the period from 8 November, 2016 to 30 Decembey,
2016 and these are in accordance with the books of accounts
maintained by the Company

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm'’s Registration No. 109420W

Shabbir S Bagasrawala
Partner

Mem]:}ers]s.ip No. 039865
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 19/ 05/ 2017
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Annex.lu‘e A
REPORT ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143
of The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/’s.
VERITAS POLYCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED (‘the Company’) as of March 31, 2017

in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Compang for the year

ended on that date.

MANAGEMENTS RESPONSILILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining interal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued, by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as

required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS'RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
‘Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reportings,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls systexn
over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company'’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
retlect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company'’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting to
future period are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBAL - 400 062.
TEL.: 2872 0555 /2873 9939 ¢ CIN No. AAC-2949 ® shabbir rita@snrllp.com ® www.snrllp.com



Shalliir & Fitw Sy dociales LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal contro]
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 109420W

Shabbir S Bagasrawala
Partner

Members]:ip No. 0359865
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date:19/05/2017
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VERITAS POLYCHEM PVT LTD

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2017

2 As At A
Particulars Note i
March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capital 3 10,000,000 100,000
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 (93,272) (700,122)
(2) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings 5 96,841,599 596,000
(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Trade Payables L
(b) Other Current Liabilities 6 1,964,950 72,340
(C) Short Term Provision ] -
Total Equity & Liabilities 108,713,278 68,218
ILASSETS
(1) Non- Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
Work in Progress 7 60,294,196 -
(b) Long Term Loan and advance
Capital Advance 8 11,890,816 -
(2) Current Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 482,676 68,218
(b) Short Term Loans and Advances 10 36,045,590 -
Total Assets 108,713,278 68,218
IIl. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS "1-18"
As per our report attached
FOR SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS For VERITAS POLYCHEM PVT LTD
F.R.N: 109420\ 3 CIN : U24233MH2011PTC212664
@ DD LN‘

SHABBIR S BAGASRAWALA
PARTNER
Membership No. : 039865

Place : Mumbai
Date : 19-05-2017

NITIN DIDWANIA
DIRECTOR
DIN:00210289
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SAURABH SANGHVI

DIRECTOR
DIN:02000411




VERITAS POLYCHEM PVT LTD

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

]

Place : Mumbai
Date : 19/05/2017

DIN:00210289

For the year For the year
Sr. No Particulars Note ended ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
1 Other Income z =
TOTAL REVENUE - -
I Expenses:
Operation And Other Expenses 13 - 631,948
Depreciation & Il
TOTAL EXPENSES e 631,948
] PROFIT BEFORE TAX - (631,948)
v Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax - -
Vv PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD & (631,948)
Vi Loss Per Equity Share: (In Rs.)
(1) Basic 0.00 (63.19)
(2) Diluted 0.00 (63.19)
11l. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEI "1-18"
As per our report attached
FOR SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS For VERITAS POLYCHEM PVT LTD
F.R.N: 109420W CIN : U24233MH2011PTC212664
/
SHABBIR S BAGASRAWALA SDManghan
PARTNER NITIN DIDWANI SAURABH SANGHVI
Membership No. : 039865 DIRECTOR ° DIRECTOR

DIN:02000411




1.

2,

Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Corporate Information:

The Company is dealing in business of dealing in Agriculture & Agro products.

statement of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

The financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost conventions,
on accrual basis of accounting to comply in all material respects, with the mandatory
Accounting Standards as notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014 as
amended (‘the Rules’) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,2013 (‘the Act').
The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and the accounting
policies not referred to otherwise are in conformity with Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (‘Indian GAAP’)

(b) Use of Estimates:

(c)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the ‘Indian GAAP’ requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of incomes and expenses during the
reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge
of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates. Differences
between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the year in which the results
are known/ materialized. Example of such estimates includes provision for doubtful debts,
employee benefits, provision for income taxes and provisions for impairment etc.

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost
includes inward freight, duties, taxes and expenses incidental to acquisition and installation
or construction, net of VAT credit, where applicable and all expenditure necessary to bring
the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Capital Work in Progress

Cost of Assets not ready for intended use, as on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital
work in progress.

(d) Impairment of Assets:

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable
value. An impairment loss is charged to profit & loss accountin the year in which an asset is
identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount....

- .
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Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

()

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

Lease Accounting :

Assets taken on operating lease : Lease rentals on assets taken on operating lease are
recognised as expense in the statement of Profit & Loss on accrual basis over the lease
term.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

i) Sale of goods:
Sales are recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer which coincides with delivery and are recorded net of trade
discounts, rebates, excise duties and VAT.

ii) Revenue from services :
Revenue from services rendered is recognized as and when the service is performed
based on agreements / arrangements with the concerned parties.

iii) Interest:

Interest income is recognized on time proportionate basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

iv) Dividend:
Dividend income from investment is recognized when the right to receive the same is
established.

Inventories :

Stock (including in transit) of traded goods are valued at lower of cost or Net realizable
Value. Cost is determined on FIFO method. The Valuation of wastage/packing materials is
valued at Nil.

Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing cost that is attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets is capitalized as part of the cost of such assets till such time as the asset
that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All
other borrowing cost is recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation:

Current income tax expense comprises taxes on income from operations in India. Income
tax payable in India is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961.




)

Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) paid in accordance to the tax laws, which gives rise to
future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is
considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal
income tax after the tax holiday period. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the
balance sheet when it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with it will
flow to the Company and the asset can be measured reliably.

Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognised on timing differences being the difference
between taxable incomes and accounting income that originate in one period and are
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

In the event of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses, deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available to realise such assets. In other situations, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future
taxable income will be available to realise these assets.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet
after off-setting advance taxes paid and income tax provisions arising in the same tax
jurisdiction and where the Company intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if it has a legally
enforceable right and these relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing
taxation laws.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets:

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be
an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the
notes to accounts. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial
statements.

(k) Cash & Cash equivalents:

()

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible
into cash and have original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to
be cash equivalents.

Retirement Benefit Plans:

Retirement benefits, gratuity and leave salary are accounted on cash basis.




VERITAS POLYCHEM PVT LTD.

Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

Note : 3 Share Capital

Sr. No Particulars AS/E AL
i March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016
1 Authorised Share Capital
10,00,000 (P.Y. 10,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each 10,000,000 100,000
10,000,000 100,000
2 Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Capital
10,00,000 (P.Y. 10,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each 10,000,000 100,000
Total in Rs. 10,000,000 100,000

Note 3 Share capital (contd.)

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Sr.No. Particulars

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

(A) _|Equity shares with voting rights

Year ended 31 March, 2017

- Number of shares

10,000 1,000,000

- Amount (Rs.) 100,000 10,000,000
Year ended 31 March, 2016

- Number of shares 10,000 10,000

- Amount (Rs.) 100,000 100,000

(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Sr.No Class of shares / Name of shareholder

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2016

Number of shares | % holding in that Number of | % holding in thai
held class of shares shares held class of shares
Equity shares with voting rights
A Veritas (India) Ltd 999,999 100% 9,999 1003
(iii) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:
(a)  [During the year the company has issued 9,90,000/- equity shares of Rs 10/- each to the parent company.
A am ue,;\
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VERITAS POLYCHEM PVT LTD

Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2017

Note : 4 Reserves & Surplus

As At As At
% Partil
i rticulant March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
1 Deficit in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance (700,122) (68,174)
Add: |Profit/ (Loss) for the Year - (631,948)
Add: |Transfer To Capital Work In Progress 606,850 -
Total in Rs. (93,272) (700,122)
Note : 5 Long Term Borrowings
As At As At
. N P la
g rtlevioss March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
1 Unsecured Loans
Loan from Related Party 96,841,599 596,000
Total in Rs. 96,841,599 596,000
Note : 6 Other Current Liabilities
As At As At
. No Particulars
* = March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
1, Other Payables:
- Sundry Creditors for Expense 1,301,095 -
- Statutory Remittance 51,724 12,500
- Audit Fees Payable 24,150 6,840
- Duties and taxes 587,981 53,000
Total in Rs. 1,964,950 72,340
Note : 8 Long Term Loan And Advance
As At As At
. N Particull
At s March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
- Capital Advance 11,890,816 -
Total in Rs. 11,890,816 -
Note : 9 Cash & Cash Equivalents
As At As At
7 Particul
i grioios March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
1 Cash On Hand 195,888 59,127
2 Balance With Banks
In Current Accounts 286,788 9,091
Total in Rs. 482,676 68,218
Note : 10 Short Term Loans and Advances
As At As At
; Partii
hae Wi March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
1 Other Advances
- Deposits Given 35,025,000 -
- Loans and Advance Given 1,020,523 -
- Other Advance 67 -
Total in Rs. 36,045,590 -
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VERITAS POLYCHEM PVT LTD

Notes Forming Integral Part of Profit & Loss Statement for year ended March 31, 2017

Note : 11 Operation and other expenses

For the year For the year
Sr. No Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
1 |Payments to auditors = 6,938
2 |Bank Charges - 660
3 ROC Fees - 12,000
4 Professional Fees - 609,850
5 Professional Tax - 2,500
Total in Rs. - 631,948
For the year For the year
Note Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
() |Payments to the auditors comprises:
As Auditors - Statutory Audit 17,250 6,938
Total in Rs. 17,250 6,938




Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

12 Related Party Disclosures :

As per Accounting Standard 18, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties as
defined in the Accounting Standard are given below:

a) Related Parties:
() Subsidiary Company : NIL
(i) Associates : NIL
(iii) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
e Nitinkumar Didwania - Director

e Saurabh Dipak Sanghvi — Director

b) Transactions with related parties for the period ended March 31, 2017:
(Figures in Rs.)

Subsidia | Associat | KMP & Enterprise Total
ry e their over which
relatives KMP
exercise
control
L‘ﬁ:g;ﬁ NIL NIL NIL | 9,68,41,599 | 9,68,41,599
(P.Y) NIL NIL NIL (596,000) | (596,000)
Lﬂgf‘e;:;?d NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
IL |
(P.Y.) N NIL NIL NIL NIL

c¢) Balances with related parties as at March 31, 2017:
(Figures in Rs.)

Subsidiar | Associate | KMP & Enterprise Total
y their over which
relatives | KMP exercise
control
Unsecured NIL NIL NIL 9,68,41,599 | 9,68,41,599
Loan (P.Y.) NIL NIL NIL (596,000) (596,000)




Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

13 Loss Per Equity Share (LPS):

The Company reports basic and diluted Loss Per Share (LPS) in accordance with Accounting
Standard 20 on Earnings Per Share. Basic LPS is computed by the net loss for the year by
the weighted average no of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Basis of calculation of Basic and Diluted Loss Per Equity share is as under:

For the year For the
Pitical s ended | period ended
' March March
31,2017 31,2016
Loss After Tax Nil (631,948)
Weighted average number of Equity
Shares
- Basic 10,00,000 10,000
- Diluted 10,00,000 10,000
Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs.) 10/- 10/-
Loss Per Share (Rs.)
- Basic (0.00) (63.19)
- Diluted (0.00) (63.19)

14 Contingent Liabilities : NIL

15 Auditor’'s Remuneration:
(Figures in Rs.)

For the year For the

ended period

Particulars March 31, ended

2017 March 31,

2016

For services as Statutory Auditors 17,250 6,938
Total 17,250 6,938

16 The Company does not have any dues payable to any micro, small and medium enterprises
as at the year end. The identification of the micro, small & medium enterprises is based on
management’s knowledge of their status. The Company has not received any intimation
from the suppliers regarding their status under the MSMED Act 2006. Hence, disclosures, if

any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end, together with interest paid / payable as
required under the said act have not been given.




Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

17 In the opinion of the Board and to the best of their knowledge and belief,the value on
realization of the current assets, loans & advances ,deposits,in the ordinary course of
business will not be less than the value stated in the Balance sheet. The liabilities on
account of supply of goods & services are also not more than the value of liabilities except
written off on account of shortage/rate Difference/contract performance/Quality Issues
etc.

18 Previous year Comparatives:
These Financial statements have been prepared in the format prescribed by the Revised
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped,
reclassified wherever necessary to correspondence with the current year’s
classification/disclosures.

As per our Audit Report of even date attached

For Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP For and on Behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants :
F.R.N:- 109420W

Shabbir S Bagasrawala NITINKUMAR DIDWANIA
Partner DIRECTOR
Membership No.- 039865 DIN: 00210289
S D T b
Place: Mumbai SAURABH SANGHVI
DIRECTOR

Date: 15/05/2017 DIN: 02000411
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THEMEMBERS OF
VERITAS INFRA & LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s Veritas Infra & Logistics
Private Limited ("the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017,
the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and
asummanry of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial pedormance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
atrue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibﬂitg is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the finangial statements are free from material misstatements.

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBALI - 400 062.
TEL. : 2872 0555/ 2873 9939 CIN No. AAC-2949 ® shabbir.rita@snrllp.com ® www.snrllp.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In malcins those risk assessments, the auditox
considers intermal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company's directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
21,2017, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit;

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of

account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBAI - 400 062.
TEL. : 2872 0555/ 2873 9939 ¢ CIN No. AAC-2949 * shabbir.rita@snrllp.com * www.snrllp.com
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as or
March 31, 2017, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2017, from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial

reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refex
to our separate Report in Annexure A

) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auc]jtors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our infoxmation and according to the
explanations given to us:

(1) The Companq has made provision, as required under the applicable
law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any,

and as required on long—term contracts iuclucling derivative
contracts.

(ii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(i) The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its financial
statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank
Notes during the period from 8 November, 2016 to 30 December,
2016 and these are in accordance with the books of accounts
maintained by the Company

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registr ion No.100420W

Shabbir S Bagasrawala
Partner

Membership No. 039865
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 15/ 05/ 2017

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBAI - 400 062.
TEL.:28720555/2873 9939 * CIN No. AAC-2949 * shabbir.rita@snrllp.com * www.snrllp.com
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A.nnexure A
REPORT ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143
of The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s.
VERITAS INFRA & LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED (‘the Company’) as of
March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSILILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Interal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued, by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, incluc]ing, adherence to company's policies, the safeguardjng of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as

required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS'RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Compang's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perorm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBAI - 400 062.
TEL. : 2872 0555/ 2873 9939 ® CIN No. AAC-2949 ® shabbir.rita@snrllp.com * www.snrllp.com
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or exror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
veporting includes those policies and procedures that

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possi]:ilih; of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting to
future period are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBAI - 400 062.
TEL. : 2872 0555 /2873 9939 ® CIN No. AAC-2949 * shabbir.rita@snrllp.com ® www.snrllp.com
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inion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATESLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration N&. 1090420W

.

Shabbir S Bagasrawala
Partner

Membership No. 039865
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date:15/05/2017

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBAI - 400 062.
TEL. : 2872 0555/ 2873 9939 ¢ CIN No. AAC-2949 * shabbir rita@snrllp.com ® www.snrllp.com



VERITAS INFRA & LOGISTICS PVT LTD

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2017

-

PARTNER
Membership No. : 039865

Place : Mumbai
Date : 15/05/2017

SANJAY 5 AGARWAL / ~“‘

DIRECTOR
DIN : 02614558

Particulars Note SRAR AEAE
March 31, 2017 Miarch 31, 2016
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capital 3 100,000 100,000
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 (199,653) (98,012)
(2) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings 5 16,408,100 46,000
(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Trade Payables 6 - =
(b) Other Current Liabilities 7 64,284 19,340
Total Equity & Liabilities 16,372,731 67,328
II.LASSETS
(1) Non- Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
Work in Progress 8 16,017,200 -
(2) Current Assets
(a) Trade Receivables 9 190,819 =
(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 114,712 67,328
(c) Short Term Loans and Advances 11 50,000 =
Total Assets 16,372,731 67,328
11l. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS "1-21"
As per our report attached
FOR SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS For VERITAS INFRA & LOGISTICS PVT LTD
CIN : U74110MH2011PTC215010
e =
ABBIR S BAGASRAWALA 1—/“’- 3 -

SHASHIKANT BAGARIA
DIRECTOR
DIN : 03555669
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VERITAS INFRA & LOGISTICS PVT LTD

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

For the year For the year
Sr. No Particulars Note ended ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
| Other Income 12 165,929 -
TOTAL REVENUE 165,929 -
Il Expenses:
Operation And Other Expenses 13 267,570 27,920
Depreciation = ~
TOTAL EXPENSES 267,570 27,920
Il [PROFIT BEFORE TAX (101,641) (27,920)
IV |Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax _ _
v PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD (101,641) (27,920)
Vi Loss Per Equity Share: (In Rs.)
(1) Basic (10.16) (2.79)
(2) Diluted (10.16) (2.79)
Ill. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =21

As per our report attached

FOR SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTA
F.R.N: 109420W

SHABBIR S BAGASRAWALA
PARTNER
Membership No. : 039865

Place : Mumbai
Date : 15/05/2017

For VERITAS INFRA & LOGISTICS PVT LTD
CIN : U74110MH2011PTC215010

DIRECTOR
DIN : 02614558

oy N
SANJAY SWAGARWAL ;ﬂ"f’“r‘?\

SHASHIKANT BAGARIA

DIRECTOR
DIN : 03555669




Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

1.

2.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Corporate Information:

The Company is dealing in business of dealing in Agriculture & Agro products.

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

The financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost conventions,
on accrual basis of accounting to comply in all material respects, with the mandatory
Accounting Standards as notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014 as
amended (‘the Rules’) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,2013 (‘the Act’).
The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and the accounting
policies not referred to otherwise are in conformity with Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (‘Indian GAAP’)

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the ‘Indian GAAP’ requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of incomes and expenses during the
reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management'’s best knowledge
of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates. Differences
between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the year in which the results
are known/ materialized. Example of such estimates includes provision for doubtful debts,
employee benefits, provision for income taxes and provisions for impairment etc.

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost
includes inward freight, duties, taxes and expenses incidental to acquisition and installation
or construction, net of VAT credit, where applicable and all expenditure necessary to bring
the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Impairment of Assets:

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable
value. An impairment loss is charged to profit & loss account in the year in which an asset is
identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Lease Accouting :

Assets taken on operating lease: Lease rentals on assets taken on operating lease are
recognised as expense in the statement of Profit & Loss on accr Jj;bhggh over the lease
term. Foid &

g




Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statennent of
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

(f)

(8)

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

i) Sale of goods:

Sales are recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer which coincides with delivery and are recorded net of trade dis counts,
rebates, excise duties and VAT.

ii) Revenue from services :
Revenue from services rendered is recognized as and when the service is performed based
on agreements / arrangements with the concerned parties.

iii) Interest:
Interest income is recognized on time proportionate basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable.

iv) Dividend:
Dividend income from investment is recognized when the right to receive the same is
established.

Inventories :

Stock (including in transit) of traded goods are valued at lower of cost or Net realizable
Value. Cost is determined on FIFO method. The Valuation of wastage/packing materials is
valued at Nil.

(h) Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing cost that is attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets is capitalized as part of the cost of such assets till such time as the asset
that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All
other borrowing cost is recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation :

Current income tax expense comprises taxes on income from operations in India. Income
tax payable in India is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961.

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) paid in accordance to the tax laws, which gives rise to
future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is
considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal
income tax after the tax holiday period. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the
balance sheet when it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with it will
flow to the Company and the asset can be measured reliably. Tk




Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

(i)

(k)

(1

Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognised on timing differences being the difference
between taxable incomes and accounting income that originate in one period and are
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

In the event of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses, deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available to realise such assets. In other situations, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future
taxable income will be available to realise these assets.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet
after off-setting advance taxes paid and income tax provisions arising in the same tax
jurisdiction and where the Company intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if it has a legally
enforceable right and these relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing
taxation laws.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets:

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be
an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the
notes to accounts. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial
statements.

Cash & Cash equivalents:

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible
into cash and have original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to
be cash equivalents.

Retirement Benefit Plans:

Retirement benefits, gratuity and leave salary are accounted on cash basis.




VERITAS INFRA & LOGISTICS PVT LTD

Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

Note : 3 Share Capital

Sr. No Particulars

As At
March 31, 2017

1 Authorised Share Capital

As At
March 31, 2016

10,000 (P.Y. 10,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each 100,000 100,000
100,000 100,000

2 Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Capital
10,000 (P.Y. 10,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each 100,000 100,000
Total in Rs. 100,000 100,000

Note 3 Share capital (contd.)

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Sr.No. Particulars

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

(A) [Equity shares with voting rights

Year ended 31 March, 2017

- Number of shares 10,000 10,000

- Amount (Rs.) 100,000 100,000
Year ended 31 March, 2016

- Number of shares 10,000 10,000

- Amount (Rs.) 100,000 100,000

(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Sr.No Class of shares / Name of shareholder

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2016

Number of shares
held

% holding in that
class of shares

Number of
shares held

% holding in that
class of shares

Equity shares with voting rights

A |Veritas (India) Ltd

10,000

100%

10,000

100%




Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2017

VERITAS INFRA & LOGISTICS PVT LTD

Note : 4 Reserves & Surplus

Sr. N Particulars Asht i
i March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
i Deficit in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance (98,012) (70,092)
Add: |Profit/ (Loss) for the Year (101,641) (27,920
Total in Rs. (199,653) (98,012)
Note : 5 Long Term Borrowings
As At As At
2 N Particulars
pi i March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
1 Unsecured Loans
Loan from Related Parties 1,408,100 46,000
Deposit - VPPL 15,000,000 -
Total in Rs. 16,408,100 46,000
Note : 6 Trade Payables
As At As At
Sr. N Particul
e ey March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
1  |Sundry Creditors for Expense 64,284 19,340
Total in Rs. 64,284 19,340
Note : 7 Trade Receivables
Z As At As At
. Ni art, rs
e Fortisule March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016
1 Sundry Debtors
Veritas Polychem Pvt Ltd 190,819 -
Total in Rs. 190,819 -
Note : 8 Cash & Cash Equivalents
As At As At
% Parti
i riilars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
1 Cash On Hand 57,728 57,728
2 Balance With Banks
In Current Accounts 56,984 9,600
Total in Rs. 114,712 67,328
Note : 9 Short Term Loans and Advances
As At As At
3 Particul
3h M0 wrtiiors March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
1 Other Advances
- Loans and Advance Given 50,000 -
Total in Rs. 50,000 -
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VERITAS INFRA & LOGISTICS PVT LTD

Notes Forming Integral Part of Profit & Loss Statement for year ended March 31, 2017

Note : 12 Other Income

For the year For the year
Sr. No Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
1 |Lease RentIncome 165,929
Total in Rs. 165,929 -
Note : 13 Operation and other expenses
For the year For the year
Sr. No Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
1 Payments to auditors (Refer Note (i) below) 11,560 6,938
2  |Bank Charges 318 282
3 ROC Fees 4,508 10,200
4 Lease Rent 241,434 2
5 Professional Fees 7,250 8,000
6 Professional Tax 2,500 2,500
Total in Rs. 267,570 27,920
For the year For the year
Note Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
(i) [Payments to the auditors comprises:
As Auditors - Statutory Audit 11,560 6,938

Total in Rs.

6,938




Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statenent of
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

14 Inventories
There is no stock in trade as on 31/03/2017.

15 Related Party Disclosures :

As per Accounting Standard 18, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties as
defined in the Accounting Standard are given below:

a) Related Parties:
(i) Subsidiary Company : NIL
(i) Associates : NIL
(iii) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
e Sanjay Agarwal - Director

e Shashikant Bagaria — Director

b) Transactions with related parties for the period ended March 31, 2017:
(Figuresin Rs.)

Holding | Subsidiary | Associate | KMP & | Enterprise Total
their over which
relatives KMP
exercise
control
Unsecured 13,62,100 13,62,100
el NIL NIL NIL NIL i,
Loan Taken (46,000) NIL NIL NIL NIL (46,000)
(P.Y.)
Lz;;e;::;?d NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(P.Y.)
c) Balances with related parties as at March 31, 2017:
' (Figures in Rs.)
Holding | Subsidiary | Associate | KMP & Enterprise Total
their over which
relatives KMP
exercise
control
Unsecured | 13,62,100 NIL NIL NIL NIL 13,62,100
Loan (P.y.) | (46,000) NIL NIL NIL NIL (46,000

62.

400




Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of

Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

16 LossPer Equity Share (LPS):

The Company reports basic and diluted Loss Per Share (LPS) in accordance with Accounting
Standard 20 on Earnings Per Share. Basic LPS is computed by the net loss for the year by

the weighted average no of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Basis of calculation of Basic and Diluted LossPer Equity share is as under:

For the year | For the period
Particulars ended March | ended March
31,2017 31,2016
Loss After Tax (101,641) (27,920)
Weighted average number of Equity
Shares
- Basic 10,000 10,000
- Diluted 10,000 10,000
Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs.) 10/- 10/-
Loss Per Share (Rs.)
- Basic (10.16) (2.79)
- Diluted (10.16) (2.79)
17 Contingent Liabilities : NIL
18 Auditor’s Remuneration:
(Figures in Rs.)
For the year For the Year
Particulars ended March | ended March
31,2017 31,2016
For services as Statutory Auditors 11,560 6,938
Total 11,560 6,938

19 The Company does not have any dues payable to any micro, small and medium
enterprises as at the year end. The identification of the micro, small & medium enterprises
is based on management’s knowledge of their status. The Company has not received any
intimation from the suppliers regarding their status under the MSMED Act 2006. Hence,
disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end, together with interest
paid / payable as required under the said act have not been given.




Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

20 In the opinion of the Board and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on
realization of the current assets, loans & advances, deposits, in the ordinary course of
business will not be less than the value stated in the Balance sheet. The liabilities on
account of supply of goods & services are also not more than the value of liabilities except
written off on account of shortage/rate Difference/contract performance/Quality Issues
etc.

21 Previous year Comparatives:

These Financial statements have been prepared in the format prescribed by the Revised
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped,
reclassified wherever necessary to correspondence with the current year’s
classification/disclosures.

As per our Audit Report of even date attached

For Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP For and on Behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
SANIJAY W

F.R.N:- 109420W
DIRECTOR

DIN: 02614558

/ﬁ_L—z &L'L‘:_?*

SHASHIKANT BAGARIA
X e o DIRECTOR
Date: 15/05/2017 e DIN: 03555669

Shabbir S Bagasrawala
Partner
Membership No.- 039865

Place: Mumbai
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

TO THEMEMBERS OF
VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Veritas Agro Venture Private
Limited. ("t]:e Compamj "), which compyrise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Compam] s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial positioﬁ, financial performance
and cash flows of the Companq in accordance with the accounting priuc:ip].es geuerallg
accepted in India iuclucling the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and clesign,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsi]:;ilitg is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements.

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBALI - 400 062.
TEL.: 2872 0555 /2873 9939 CIN No. AAC-2949 ¢ shabbir.rita@snrllp.com ® www.snrllp.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts andl
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or ervor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion om
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Compang s directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31,2017, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

L Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of ourx
auclit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books,

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accouutins
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 9014;

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBALI - 400 062.
TEL.: 2872 0555/2873 9939« CIN No. AAC-2949 * shabbir.rita@snrllp.com * www.snrllp.com
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as om
March 31, 2017, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2017, from being appointed as a director in termas
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in Annexure A

8) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable
law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any,
and as required on long—term contracts including derivative
contracts.

(ii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(i)  The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its financial
statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank
Notes cluring the periocl from 8 chember, 2016 to 30 December,
2016 and these are in accordance with the books of accounts
maintained by the Company

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.109420W

Shabbir S Bagasrawala
Partner

Mem]:ers]:ip No. 059865
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date:15/05/2017

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBALI - 400 062.
TEL. : 2872 0555 /2873 9939 * CIN No. AAC-2949  shabbir.rita@snrllp.com ® www.snrllp.com
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Annexure A
REPORT ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143
of The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the intermal financial controls over financial reporting of M/’s,
VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED('the Company") as of Maxch 31,

2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the yeax
ended on that date.

MANAGEMENTS RESPONSILILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intermal
financial controls based on the intermal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued, by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as

required under the Companies Act, 2013.
AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Intexnal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBAI - 400 062.
TEL.: 2872 0555 /2873 9939 ® CIN No. AAC-2949 ® shabbir.rita@snrllp.com ® www.snrllp.com
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the desigm
and operating effectiveness of intexnal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls systerm
over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future period are subject to the risk that the intermal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBAL - 400 062.
TEL.: 2872 0555 /2873 9939« CIN No. AAC-2949 * shabbir rita@snrllp.com ® www.snrllp.com
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Qginion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the intemal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATESLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 109420W

Shabbir S Bagasrawala
Partner

Mem]:)ership No. 059865
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date:15/05/2017

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBAL - 400 062.
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VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED
PART-I BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2017

As At 31 Marech,

As At 31 March,

Particulars Note
2017 2016
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capital 3 1,00,000 1,00,000
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 8,35,36,55,026 8,35,04,47,036

(2) Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Long-Term Borrowings 5 14,48,29,372 14,78,19,234

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities 25,354 56,118

(3) Current Liabilities

(a) Other Current Liabilities 6 80,923 1,52,867
Total Equity & Liabilities 8,49,86,90,675 8,49,85,75,255

Il.LASSETS

(1) Non-Current Assets

(a) Fixed Assets

(i) Tangible Assets 7 8,48,83,63,209 8,48,84,62,772

(i) Intangible Assets 12,60,760 16,81,016

(b) Non-current Investments 8 6,01,600 6,01,600

(2) Current Assets

(a) Inventories 18,32,569 23,84,864

(b) Trade Receivables 9 23,46,255 24,59,867

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 16,60,925 17,02,985

(d) Short-term Loans and Advances 11 26,25,357 12,82,151

Total Assets 8,49,86,90,675 8,49,85,75,255
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1to 26

As per our report of even date

For Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

FRN:109420\
/

Shabbir S. Bagasrawala
PARTNER

M.No. : 039865

Place : Mumbai

Date: 15/05/2017

Nitin Kumar Digwania
(Director
DIN: 00210289

Niti Didwania

(Director)

DIN: 01938308




VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED
PART-Il STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017

A~

St For the year For the year
N " |Particulars Note ended 31 March, | ended 31 March,
o i
2017 2016
| Revenue from Operations 12 50,39,705 39,72,237
Other Income 13 1,60,344 1,80,762
[} Il. Total Revenue 52,00,049 41,52,999
Il |Expenses:
Agriculture Expenses 14 6,45,220 7,05,694
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 5,52,295 -
Finance Costs 15 8,683 10,659
Operation and Other Expenses 16 2,96,806 9,89,939
Total Expenses (lil) 15,03,004 17,06,292
IV |Profit Before Depreciation and Tax (10-111) 36,97,045 24,46,707
V  |Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 7 5,19,819 5,39,554
VI |Profit Before Tax (IV-V) 31,77,226 19,07,153
VIl |Tax expense: .
(1) Current Tax - -
(2) Income Tax adjustment - -
(3) Deferred Tax (30,764) (9,003)
VIII |Profit for the period (VI-vil) 32,07,990 19,16,156
IX |Earning per share:
(1) Basic 320.80 191.62
(2) Diluted 320.80 191.62
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1to 26
As per our report of even date
For Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP or and on Behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants : U01403TN2011PTC103236
FRN:109420W 2
Shabbir S. Bagasrawala Nitin Kumar Djdwania Niti Didwania
PARTNER (Director) (Director)
M.No. : 039865 DIN: 00210289

Place : Mumbai

Date : 15/05/2017

DIN: 01938308




VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements:

1,

(a)

Corporate Information:

The Company is dealing in the business of dealing in Agriculture & Agro products.

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

The financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost conventions, on accrual
basis of accounting to comply in all material respects, with the mandatory Accounting Standards as
notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014 as amended (‘the Rules’) and the relevant

provisions of the Companies Act,2013 (‘the Act’). The accounting policies have been consistently applied

~ by the Company and the accounting policies not referred to otherwise are in conformity with Indian

(b)

(c)

(d)

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (‘Indian GAAP’).

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the ‘Indian GAAP’ requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of incomes and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based
upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual-results could differ from
these estimates. Differences between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the year in
which the results are known/ materialized. Example of such estimates includes provision for doubtful

debts, employee benefits, provision for income taxes and provisions for impairment etc.

Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at the cost of acquisition or construction, less accumulated depreciation
and impairment, if any. The cost of Fixed Assets includes taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable from tax authorities) inward freight, duties, taxes and expenses incidental to acquisition and
installation or construction, net of VAT credit, where applicable and all expenditure necessary to bring
the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Profit or loss on disposal of tangible assets is

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible Fixed Assets are stated at agg RGost, net of accumu ization and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.



VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

(e) Depreciation:
Depreciation is being provided on all tangible assets on “Straight Line Method” as per the rates and in

the manner prescribed in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 2013.

(f) Impairment of Assets:
An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value. An
impairment loss is charged to profit & loss account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired.
The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the

estimate of recoverable amount.

(g) Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

i. Sale of Goods:
Sales are recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the

buyer which coincides with delivery and are recorded net of trade discounts, rebates, excise duties

and VAT.

ii. Revenue from Services :
Revenue from Services rendered is recognized as and when the service is performed based on

agreements / arrangements with the concerned parties.

iii. Interest:
Interest income is recognized on time proportionate basis taking into account the amount

outstanding and the rate applicable.

iv. Dividend:

Dividend income from investment is recognized when the right to receive the same is established.

(h) Inventories:
Stock (including in transit) of traded goods are valued at lower of cost or Net realizable Value. Cost is

determined on FIFO method. The Valuation of wastage/packing materials are valued at Nil.




(i)

1)

(k)

VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

Employee Benefits:
(a) Gratuity :
Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on actuarial valuation made as at

the Balance sheet date.

Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing cost that is attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets is
capitalized as part of the cost of such assets till such time as the asset that necessarily requires a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing cost are recognized as

an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation :
Current income tax expense comprises taxes on income from operations in India. Income tax payable in

India is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) paid in accordance to the tax laws, which gives rise to future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax after the tax holiday period.
Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in the balance sheet when it is probable that the future

economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company and the asset can be measured reliably.

Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognised on timing differences being the difference between
taxable incomes and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one
or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax

laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

In the event of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses, deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available to
realise such assets. In other situations, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is

reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available to realise these assets.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-
setting advance taxes paid and income tax provisions arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the

Company intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.
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The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if it has a legally enforceable right

and these relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

(I) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets:
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a
present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to accounts when there is a
present obligation that probably will not require an outflow of resources or where sufficient and reliable
estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in

the financial statements.

(m) Cash & Cash equivalents:
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into cash

and have original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents.




VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017

Note : 3 Share Capital

o Particulars As At 31 March, | AsAt31 March,
No 2017 2016
1 |AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
120,000 EQUITY SHARES OF X 10/- EACH 12,00,000 12,00,000
(P.Y. 120,000 EQUITY SHARES OF X 10/- EACH)
12,00,000 12,00,000
2 |ISSUED, SUBCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL
10,000 EQUITY SHARES OF X 10/- EACH 1,00,000 1,00,000
(P.Y. 10,000 EQUITY SHARES OF  10/- EACH)
Totalin X 1,00,000 1,00,000

Note 3 Share capital (contd.)

SEle, Particulars

Opening Balance

Cancellation on merger

Fresh issue on merger

Closing Balance

(A) |Equity shares with voting rights

Year ended 31 March, 2017

- Number of shares 10,000 - - 10,000

- Amount (%) 1,00,000 _- - 1,00,000
Year ended 31 March, 2016

- Number of shares 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

- Amount (%) 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000

(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder

As at 31 March, 2017

As at 31 March, 2016

Number of shares held

% holding in that class
of shares

Number of shares held

% holding in that class
of shares

Equity shares with voting rights

Veritas India Limited

10,000

100.00

10,000

100.00

Note: 1 Share is held by Nitin Kumar Didwania who is a registered shareholder.
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Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017

Note 4: Reserve & Surplus

As At 31 March,

As At 31 March,

Sr. No Particulars
2017 2016
1  |Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance 38,47,036 19,30,880
Add:-Profit for the year 32,07,990 19,16,156
Closing Balance 70,55,026 38,47,036
2  |Capital Reserve
Opening balance - 8,34,45,73,720
Add: Addition during the year - -
Less: Adjusted during the year - 8,34,45,73,720
Closing balance - -
3 Share Premium
Opening balance 8,34,66,00,000 -
Add: Addition during the year - 8,34,66,00,000
Closing balance 8,34,66,00,000 8,34,66,00,000
Total in X 8,35,36,55,026 8,35,04,47,036

Note 5: Long Term Borrowings

As At 31 March,

As At 31 March,

Sr. No Particulars
2017 2016
Loans & Advances From Related Parties
- From Directors (Unsecured) - 14,78,19,234
- Veritas(India) Limited 14,48,29,372 -
Total in X 14,48,29,372 14,78,19,234
Note 6: Other Current Liabilities
. As At 31 March As At 31 Mar
Sr. No Particulars ! e e
2017 2016
Other payables:
- Statutory remittances - 83,500
- Expenses Payables 80,923 69,367
TotalinX 80,923 1,52,867




[ = [oT0'18'o1 [vsz'ozy |- (=2 [ psz'oz'y [ocz't0'1z . | ocz'10'T2 | * _ seajsnopmaid| |
[= | 0920921 |ots'ov's | - | 9sz'0z'y | vsz‘oz'y | ozz't0'TZ . | ocz't0't2 [= | uoneweBjewy uo impoos| (T |
sjassy a|qisueu] (1)
[~ |zee'zo've'sv's | Leg's6's | - [ s | Leg'86'z |60T'To'28'3b'8 | - | 6ot'to's8'8p's | - _ seajsnoinaid] |
TLL'T9'v8'8Y'8 | 6OT'E9'EB'8Y'S | D06°LE'E - €95'66 LEE'BE'T 601'T9'L88Y'8 = 601°T9'L8'8Y'8 | - IvLl0L
08562 zLe'oz GLE'9T - 80T'S £9T'TT LyL'9€E = LyL'9E %05'6 81240 J0j0N| (£
xa; 121 €62C = - £62'C AR A 4 ¥Iv'e %TZ'91 (AleL) asuadn asemyos)| (9
§56'69'S OTY'ET’S TLOPB'T A S¥5'9S LTSLT'T 781'L6"9 = 8y'L6'9 %SL'Y Asauiyaey g ueld| (s
98L'T 98L'T 6E6'EE 2 c 6E6EE STL'SE - STL'SE %SL'Y wawdinb3 aayo| (v
T¥9°L5'T TES'ET'T S9E'6E'T |- 0T8'LE S5S'T0'T 96T65'C * 961'65'C %EE'9 saunixid g aJnyuing| (€
6E0'E 6E0E 95812 5 3 mmmam 568'vZ C S68'vT %TT'9T washs taindwod| (z
0S9'vO°LL8Y'S | 0S9'bO'LL'8Y'E |- = - 0S9'v0'LL'8Y'8 w 0S9'v0'LL'8Y'8 = pue| (T
9T0Z'€0'TE LIOZ'E0'TE  |L10Z'€0°TE | uopdnpag Jeah ayy Joj | 9TOZ'¥0'TO IV S LTOZ'E0'TE uonanpag uoRIppy 9T0Z'v0°'T0 "ON
uo sy uo sy oydn uonepasdag je sy 1e sy a1ey sie[naijed IS
ya0ig 19N uopewedjewy/uopepaldag )20|g S5049 S$13SSV gaxid

Q3LINIT ILVAIYd STHNLNIA OYOV SYLIHIN

s1assy 9|qiuel (1)
L ON Sjnpayds

LTOZ ‘YdJBIA ISTE 1B SE 133YS 2Juejeq 3y} jo 1ed |esdayu) Sujwioy salonN



VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017

Note 8: Non Current Investment

St Ko sl As At 31 March, As At 31 March,
2017 2016
Investments in Equity Instrument (At Cost)
1 [Non-Trade - Quoted 6,01,600 6,01,600
GV Investment Finance Company Ltd
10,000 (P. Y. £ 6,01,600/-) Equity Shares of $ 1 each fully paid up
Total in X 6,01,600 6,01,600

Note 9: Trade Receivables

As At 31 March,

As At 31 March,

Sr. No Particulars
2017 2016
1 | Others
-Unsecured, Considered Good : 23,46,255 29,40,637
Less- Provision for Bad Debts - (4,80,770)
Totalin X 23,46,255 24,59,867
Note 10: Cash & Cash Equivalents
As At 31 March M
Sr. No Particulars L As At 31 Morch,
2017 2016
1 | Cash on Hand 13,813 14,09,643
2 | Balances with Bank
In current accounts 16,47,112 2,93,342
Total in X 16,60,925 17,02,985
Note 11: Short Terms Loans and Advances
' As At 31 March As At 31 ,
Sr.No Particulars ’ March,
2017 2016
1 | Security deposits
- Unsecured, considered good 41,761 41,761
2 | Loans and advances
- Unsecured, considered good 25,74,104 12,30,966
3 | Prepaid expenses
- Unsecured, considered good 492 424
4 | Advance Taxes Net of Provisions 9,000 9,000
Total in X 26,25,357 12,82,151




VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes Forming Part of the Statement of Profit & Loss as at 31st March, 2017

Note 12: Revenue from Operations

3 As At 31 March, As At 31 March,
Sr. No Particulars
2017 2016
1 |Sale of agriculture produced @ (Refer Note (i) below) 50,39,705 39,72,237
Total in¥ 50,39,705 39,72,237
. As At 31 March As At 31 Marc
NOTE Particulars 2 h,
2017 2016
(i) [Sales- Agriculture Produced in Farms 50,39,705 39,72,237
Total- Sale of agriculture produced 50,39,705 39,72,237
Note 13: Other Income
As At 31 March t31
Sr. No Particulars 5 A % AsA March,
2017 2016
(a) |Other non-operating income (Refer Note (i)(ii) below) 1,60,344 1,80,762
Total 1,60,344 1,80,762
) As At 31 March, As At 31 March,
Note Particulars
2017 2016
(i) [Interest income comprises:
Interest from banks on:
- deposits < 20,418
Total - Interest income - 20,418
(ii) |Other non-operating income comprises:
- Lease Rent 1,60,344 1,60,344
Total - Other non-operating income 1,60,344 1,60,344

Note 14: Agriculture Expenses

As At 31 March,

As At 31 March,

Sr. No Particulars
2017 2016
1  |Agriculture Expenses 6,45,220 7,05,694
Total in % 6,45,220 7,05,694




VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes Forming Part of the Statement of Profit & Loss as at 31st March, 2017

Note 15: Finance Cost

Sr. No Particulars

As At 31 March,
2017

As At 31 March,
2016

1  [Bank Charges & Commission

8,683

10,659

Total in X

8,683

10,659

Note 16: Operation and other expenses

As At 31 March,

As At 31 March,

Sr. No Particulars
2017 2016
1  |Electricity Charges 10,800 12,316
2 Insurance Premium 749 756
3 |Legal and professional fees 55,196 8,71,564
4  |Payments to auditors (Refer Note (i) below) 28,750 17,175
5 Printing and stationery 2,305 4,837
6 Professional Tax 2,500 7,500
7 Rent, Rates and taxes 90,800 30,150
8 ROC Filing Charges 3,531 7,800
9 Telephone, Internet & Postage Charges 7,298 8,078
10 |Miscellaneous Expenses 85,887 11,804
11  ([Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 8,990 17,959
Totalin X 2,96,806 9,89,939
Notes:
Particulars As At 31 March, As At 31 March,
2017 2016
Payments to the auditors comprises (net of service tax input
(i) |credit):
As auditors - statutory audit 28,750 17,175
Total 28,750 17,175




VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

17 Retirement Benefit Plans:

Disclosure as required by Accounting Standard 15(Revised) on Employee Benefits in respect of Gratuity,

a defined benefit scheme (based on actuarial valuation) is given below:

(Figures in X)

Sr. Particulars For the year For the year
No. ended ended
31/03/2017 31/03/2016

| Change in obligation during the year ended March,
2017

1 Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at 9,419 28,962
beginning of the year

2 Current Service Cost 1,790 1,753

3 Interest Cost 5 2

4 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses (62) (21,296)

5 Benefit Paid 5 -

6 Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at end of 11,271 9,419
the year

Il Change in Assets during the year ended March 31, - - -
2017

1 Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 4,31,672 3,98,192

2 Actual Benefits Paid - -

3 Expected returns on Plan Assets 35,616 33,264

4 Contributions by Employer 36 216

5 Actuarial Gains/(Losses) - -

6 Plan Assets at the end of the year 4,67,324 4,31,672

1]l Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet - -
as at 31st March, 2017

1 Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 11,271 9,419

2 Fair value of Plan Assets as on March 31,2017 4,67,324 4,31,672

3 Fund Status Surplus/(Deficit) 4,56,053 4,22,253

4 Net Assets/(Liability) as at March 31,2017 4,56,053 4,22,253

v Expenses recognized in the statement of Profit & - -
Loss for the year ended March 31,2017

1 Current Service Cost = Rsso 1,790 1,753

2 Interest Cost - -




VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

3 Expected returns on Plan Assets (35,616) (33,264)
4 Net Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 33,862 31,727
5 Total Expense 36 216
Vv The Major categories of plan assets as a percentage

of total plan

Insurer Managed Funds 100% 100%
Vi Actuarial Assumptions
1 Discount Rate 8% 8%
2 Rate of Return on Plan Assets 8.25% 8.35%
3 | Mortality Table LIC(1994-96) LIC(1994-96)
4 Retirement Age 60 Years 60 Years

18 Deferred Taxes

Major component of Deferred Tax arising on account of temporary timing difference is as under:-

(Figures in X)

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31/03/2017 31/03/2016
Deferred Tax Liability
Opening Balance 56,118 65,121
Less: Addition/(Reversal) of Deferred Tax
(30764) (9003)
on account of Depreciation on Fixed assets
Closing Balance 25,354 56,118

19 Related Party Disclosures :

As per Accounting Standard 18, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties as defined in the

Accounting Standard are given below:

a.

Related Parties:

Subsidiary Company : NIL

Associates : NIL

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

e Nitin Kumar Didwania - Director

e Niti Didwania — Director

Enterprise over which KMP exercise control: -

e Veritas India Limited

2 ‘\\ \}‘Dv
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VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

b. Transactions with related parties for the period ended March 31, 2017:

(Figures in X)

Particulars KMP & their relatives Enterprise over which KMP
exercise control

Unsecured Loans Repaid 14,78,19,234 =
(31,01,000) =
Unsecured Loans Taken - -
(61,000) 2

Outstanding as at March 31, 2017
Amount Payable ]
(_14,78,19,234} &

20 Earnings Per Equity Share (EPS):

Basis of calculation of Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Equity share is as under:

(Figures in X)

Tk For the year ended For the period ended
March 31,2017 March 31,2016
Profit After Tax 32,07,990 19,16,156
Weighted average number of Equity Shares
- Basic 10,000 10,000
- Diluted 10,000 10,000
Nominal Value of Equity Shares (%) 10/- 10/-
Earning Per Share (%)
- Basic 320.80 191.62
- Diluted 320.80 191.62

21 Contingent Liabilities : NIL

22 Auditor's Remuneration:

(Figures in X)

Particulars

For services as Statutory Auditors

Total

For the year ended March

For the period ended

31, 2017 March 31, 2016
28,750 17,175
28,750 17,175
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24
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VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

There are no specific claims from suppliers under interest delayed on payments covered under Small

Scale & Ancillary Act, 1993.

The Company does not have any dues payable to any micro, small and medium enterprises as at the
year end. The identification of the micro, small & medium enterprises is based on management’s
knowledge of their status. The Company has not received any intimation from the suppliers regarding
their status under the MSMED Act 2006. Hence, disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the

year end, together with interest paid / payable as required under the said act have not been given.

In the opinion of the Board and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on realization of the
current assets, loans & advances, deposits, in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the
value stated in the Balance sheet. The liabilities on account of supply of goods & services are also not
more than the value of liabilities except written off on account of Shortage/ Rate Difference/ Contract

Performance/ Quality Issues etc.

Previous year Comparatives:

These Financial statements have been prepared in the format prescribed by the Revised Schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped, reclassified wherever necessary

to correspondence with the current year’s classification/disclosures.

As per our Audit Report of even date attached

For Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRN:- 109420W

For and on Behalf of the Board
CIN:U01403TN2011PTC103236

Shabbir S. Bagasrawala Nitin Kumar Didwania Niti Didwania
(Partner) (Director (Director)
M.No.: 039865 DIN:00210289 DIN:01938308

Place: Mumbai

Date: 15/05/2017
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DIRECTORS' STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2017

1 OPINION OF THE DIRECTORS



ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TOQ ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEEENTURES

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES OR DERENTURES



DIRECTORS' STATHMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2017

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY



VERITAS GLOBAL PTE LTD
(Incorporated in Singapore)
Co.Regn.No. 2010100942

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2017



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAY, POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY




VERITAS GLOEAL PTE LTD
(Incorporated in Singapore)
Co.Regn.No. 2010100947Z

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED

31.3.2017
Accumulated Share
Profit Capital Total
Us$ Uss$ Uss

Balance as at 31/3/15 110,090 77 110,167
Total Comprehensive (6,515) (6,515)
income for the year -
Ralance as at 31/3/16 103,575 77 103,652
Total Comprehensive (3,773) = (3,773)
income for the year
Balance as at 31/3/17 99,802 77 99,879

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES

Singapore
16 May 2017



VERITAS GLOBAL PTE LTD
{Incorporated in Singapore)
Co.Regn.No. 2010100942

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

NET DECREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH & GASH EQUIVALENTS B/F

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS C/F



VERITAS GLOBAL PTE LTD
(Incorporated in Singapore)
Co.Regn.No. 2010100942

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents in the

statement of cash flows
comprise the following amounts:

2017 2016
Uss Uss
Cash & Bank Balances -

The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following
currency:

2017 2016

uss$ uss

Singapore Dellar = 137
United States Dollars - 5,648
- 5,785

Singapore
16 May 2017



WOTES TO THE PINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2017

(a} Basis of Accounting



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2017



{b)

(i)

(ii}

{c}

{i)

VERITAS GLOBAL PTE LTD
{Incorporated in Singapore)
Co.Regn.No. 201010084Z

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 MARCH 2017
Currency Translation

Functicnal and presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of the
Company are measured using the currency of the
primary econcmic envirconment in which the Company
operates (“the functional currency”). The fipancial
statements are presented in United States Dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in a currency other than the functional
currency {“foreign currency”)are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Currency translation
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

Income Tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the financial year
comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax 1is
recognised in the profit and loss statement except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly to
equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
profit for the financial year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting
pericd, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect

of previous years.
11



(ii)

(d)

VERITAS GLOBAL PTE LTD
{Incorporated in Singapore)
Co.Regn.No. 201010094%

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 MARCH 2017

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided wusing the balance sheet
liability method, on all temporary differences at the
statement of financial position date arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts in the financial statements. Future tax
benefits arising from all temporary differences, tax
losses and unutilised capital allowances are recognised

to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be availlable against which the temporary
differences, tax losses and unutilised capital allowances
can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the tax asset is

realized or the tax liability is settled. Deferred tax
1s charged or credited to the statement of comprehensive
income, except when it relates to items charged or

credited directly to equity in which case the deferred
tax 1is also dealt with in equity. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are offset when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority,

Employee Benefits
(i) Defined contribution benefits

As required by law, the company makes
contributions to the state pension scheme, the
Central Provident Fund. The contributions are
recognised as compensation expense in the same
period as the employment that gives rise to
the contribution,

(11) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue te employees. An
accrual is made for the estimated liability
for leave as a result of services rendered by
employess up to the statement of financial
position date.

12



(e}

(£)

VERITAS GLOBAL PTE LTD
{Incorporated in 3ingapore)
Co.Regn.No, 2010100947

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2017

Impairment of non-finanecial assets

The carrying amounts of the assets are reviewed at each
statement of finanecial position date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amount 1is
estimated. Recoverable amount is defined as the higher of
fair value less costs to sell and value in use,

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

An impairment loss is only reversed to the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying

amount that would have |been determined, net of
depreciation or amocrtisation, if no impairment loss has
been recognised. All reversals of impairment are

recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the company and
the revenue can be reliably measured. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognised.

Sale of Goods

Revenue 1is recognised upon the transfer of significant
risk and rewards of ownership of the goods to the customer
which generally coincides with their delivery and
acceptance of the goods sold,

13



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 MARCH 2017



VERITAS GLOBAL PTE LTD
{Incorporated in Singapore)
Co.Regn.No. 2010100947

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -~ 31 MBRRCH 2017

an allowance for impairment of receivables is recognised
for uncollectible amounts when there is objective
evidence that the Company will not be able to collect the
debt. Bad debts are written off when identified. The
allowance recognised is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
The amount of the allowance is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.

1f, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recocgnised, the previously recognised impairment loss
shall ke reversed either directly or by adjusting an
allowance account. The amount of the reversal shall be

recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
Recognition and De-recognition

Financial assets are recognised in the statement of
financial position when and only when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument.

Pinancial assets are de-recognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or when all risks and rewards of ownership have been
substantially transferred. On de-recognition of a
financial asset in its entirety, the difference bhetween
the carrying amount and the sum of (a) the consideration
received and (b) any cumulative gain or loss recognised
directly in eguity 1is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

15



(3)

{k)

(1)

{m)

VERITAS GLCOBAL PTE LTD
{Incorporated in Singapcre)
Co.Regn.No. 2010100942

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2017

Financial Liabilities

Financial 1liabilities include trade payables, other
payables, payables to related parties and interest-bearing
loans and borrowings. Financial liabilities are recognised
on the statement of financial position when, and only when
the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of
the financial instrument. Financial liabilities are
initially recognised at fair wvalue of consideration
received less directly attributable transaction costs and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest methed.

Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income when the liabilities are de-
recognised as well as through the amortisation process.

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation
under the liakility is discharged or cancelled or expires,

Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Ralated Parties

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties
are considered to be related to the Company if the
Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the party or exercise significant influence over
the party in making financial and operating decisions, or
vice versa, or where the Company and the party are
subject to common control or common significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or other
entities.

Key management personnel
Key management personnel of the Company are those persons

having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Company.

16
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VERITAS GLOBAL PTE LTD
{Incorporated in Singapore)
Co.Regn.No. 2010100942

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2017
8{a) TAXATION

{a) Tax Expense

2017 2016
uss uss
Overprovision of taxation for previous year {659) {1,097}
Current Income Tax = =
T(eB%y.  a,097)

The income tax expense on the results of the Company for the financial year
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise by applying the Singapore
tax rate to profit before income tax due to the following timing differences:

2017 2016

uss Uss
{Loss) /Profit before tax (4,432} *
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 17% {753} =
Tax effect of: -
-deferred tax not recognised 753
Qverprovision of taxation for previous year {659) (1,097)

{659} {1,097)
*Loss is disregarded if there are no sales for the year.
8({b) TAXATION

201% 2016

us uss
Tazx losses carried forward avallable for 4,432 -
offsetting against future taxable income
Unabsorbed wear & tear allowances carried forward = =
available for offsetting against future taxable
income
Total other timing differences to be accounted for = =
in future years

4,432 -
Deferred tax benefit on above unrecorded 753 =

The realisation of the future income tax benefits from the tax loss and
unabsorbed wear and tear allowances carried forward is available for an
unlimited future period subject to there being no substantial change in the
shareholders as required by provisions of the Income Tax

Act and to agreement with the tax authorities.
18



VERITAS GLOBAL PTE LTD
{Incorporated in Singapore}
Co.Regn.No. 2010100942

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 MARCH 2017

9 SHARE CARPITAL
2017 2016
Uss Uss
Issued & Fully Paid:
Balance at beginning and end of
financial year
77 77

100 Ordinary Shares

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
and when declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote
per share without restriction. All shares rank equally with regard to

the Company’s residual assets.

There is no par value for these ordinary shares.

Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain an
optimal capital structure sc as to maximize shareholder wvalue. In
order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment, issue new shares
or obtain additional borrowings when necessary.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital
regquirement.

The capital structure of the Company consists of the following:

2017 2016

Uss Uss
Cash and cash equivalents — 5,785
Shareholders’ equity 99,879 103,652

There was no change in the Company’s approach to capital management
during the financial year.

10 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

NOTE 2017 2016
Uss Uss

After Charging:
Audit Fee 2,504 735
756 261

Exchange Difference
19
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VERITAS GLOBAL PTE LTD
{Incorporated in Singapore}
Co.Regn.No. 2010100942

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2017

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s main financial risks comprise of foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Company’s overall risk management programme seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Company.

{a) Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
currency exposure primarily with respect to the Singapore
Dollar. The Company reviews periodically its foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities if any, held in currencies
other than the Singapore dollar to ensure that net exposure

is kept at acceptable levels,

Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reascnably
possible change in the Singapore dollar exchange rates {against
United States dollar}, with all other variables held constant, on
the Company’s profit before income tax.

{Increase}/Decrease in Loss

2017 2016
Loss before Loss before
income tax income tax
uss Uss
Singapore - strengthened 2% 48 (25)
Dollar (2016:2%)
-weakened 2% {48) 25
(2016:2%)

Management is of the view that the above sensitivity analysis
may not be representative of the inherent foreign currency
risk as year end exposure may not reflect the actual exposure
and circumstances during the financial year.

20
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2017

FINENCIAL INSTRUMENTS



HNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2017

14 TRADE CREDITORS



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2017
15 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Impairment of receivables



MEHERVAN SINGH & CO

Chartered Accountants Singapore 5001 Beach Road #07-23/25

Golden Mile Complex
Singapore 129588
Telephone: 62922510 (3 lines)

Partners:
Fax:; 62931105

Chin Bet See, C A Singapore
Charanjit Singh Sahni, C A Singapore, A.C.I.S

VERITAS GLORAL PTE LTD

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS‘ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF VERITAS GLOBAL PTE LTD
Co.Regn.No, 2010100942

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cpinion

We have audited the financial statements of VERITAS GLOBAL PTE LTD (“the Company”)
which comprise the statement of financial position of the Company as at 318t March
2017, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Company for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Provision for impairment may be required in respect of the trade debtors{US8$100,550)and
other debtors (US$5,339) for which there were no movements during the year ended 31/3/17
till the date of the audit report.

Except for the trade debtors (US$100,330) and other debtors (US$5,339),in our opinion,
the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the Act) and Financial Reporting Standards
in Singapore (FRSs) so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 March 2017 and of the financial performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore S3tandards on Auditing {S3As}. OQur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Anditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory
Authority (ACRR) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and
Accounting Entities (ACRA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRAR Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Directors’ Statement (set out on pages 1-3}.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion therecn.

In conpnection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required teo report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that glve a true
and fair view in accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising
and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as
necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to
maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the golng concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, o©or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include oversesing the Company’s financial reporting

process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our gpinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance wWith SSAs will always detect 2 material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 1if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an auvdit in accordance with S3As, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financlal statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for ocur opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusiecn,
forgery, intenticnal omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal contrel.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidernce
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves falr presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the
Company have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Mehtrvow &{M;jk pyA

Mehervan Singh & Co.,
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
16 May 2017

28



THE FOLLOWING STATEMENTS DO NOT FORM PART OF THE AUDITED
STATUTORY ACCOUNTS OF THE COMPANY



TRADING & FROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.3.2017



HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZF
Audited Financial Statements
31 March 2017

Registered address
Plot No # 1A-08

Hamriyah Free Zone
Sharjah- U.A.E.



HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE

Audited Financial Statements
31 March 2017

CONTENTS

Company Information

Director's Report

Independent Auditors’ Report
Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements



Office address

Shareholder's

Auditors

Principal Banks :

HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE

Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates

Company Information

Plot No # 1A-08
Hamriyah Free Zone
Sharjah- United Arab Emirates

Name Nationality
M/S Veritas (India) Lid India

Youssry & Co. Auditing & Consultancy
Sharjah, UAE

National Bank of Fujairah
State Bank of India
Union Bank of India
Ajman Bank

United Arab Bank
National Bank of Oman

Page 1



HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates

Director's Report

The Director has the pleasure in presenting his report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended March 31. 2017.

Operational & Financial review:

Hazel International FZE (HIF) is developing a complete integrated chemical & petrochemical storage
and handling terminal with capacity of around 175,000 cbm in Hamriyah Free Zone, Sharjah, UAE for
both liquid bulk as well as containerized cargoes. A part from storage, the facility will offer value added
services like drumming, blending and distillation. The total project cost of the terminal is USD 126.45
million and is being funded by a mix of debt and equity. Tata Consulting Engineers Limited and Tata
Projects Limited are Project Management Consultant and EPC Contractor respectively. The construction
of the storage tank farm is in advance stage. The cost incurred as on March 31, 2017 is USD
L11,611,518/-. The Management is expecting the project to be completed in the third quarter of the year.

Director's role & responsibilities:

The Director is the Entity's principal decision-maker and has the overall responsibility of leading and
supervising the Entity and to deliver sustainable growth to the shareholders. He monitors performance of
the Entity's business, guides and supervises its management.

The Managing Director recognises his responsibility to ensure the existence of the internal control
systems and for reviewing its continued effectiveness. In view of the above, the management has in
place a management information system that facilitates financial and other information being
periodically reported on a transparent basis to the management and that in turn helps management to
mitigate risks to the extent feasibie.

Anditors;

M/s Youssry & Co. Auditing & Consultancy, is willing to be re-appointed as auditor of the company.
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Report of the Auditors' to the Shareholder's of
HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/S HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE, which
comprises of the statement of financial position as of 31 March 2017, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and staiement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and explanatory notes.

Maragement’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstance.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditors® judgment,
including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the company’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of M/S HAZEL

INTERNATIONAL FZE as of 31 March 2017 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards,

PO Box 95463

Dubai-UAE
diting & C om., ﬁa cy

.\ (p
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates

Statement of Financial Position
as at March 31, 2017
(In United States Dollars)

Assets
Non-Current Assets:
Capital work-in-progress

Current Assets:
Cash and bank balances
Other receivables

Total Assets

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Non-Current Liabilities:
Non-current liabilities

Current Liabilities:
Other payables
Bank borrowings

Total Liabilities
Shareholder's Equity:

Share Capital
Contribution from associate

Total Shareholdey’s Equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Notes

h

o0

2017
USD

111,611,518
111,611,518

5,404,713
1,269,250
6,673,963

118,285,481

75,611,057
75,611,057

8,908,676
3,968,254
12,876,930

88,487,987

9,524
29,787,970

29,797,494

118,285,481

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

The Report of the Auditors is set out on page 4.
The financial statements on pages 5 fo 19 approved by the Director on April 12, 2017,

For HAZEL INTERNA

@,
Di O P.0. Box. 54073
ir Sharjah - UAE.
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2016
USD

58,205,508
58,205,508

11,010,784
3,477,528
14,488,312

72,693,820

38,341,240
38,341,240

13,144,150

13,144,150
51,485,390

9,524
21,198,906

21,208,430

72,693,820



HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended March 31,2017
(In United States Dollars)

Notes

Revenue

Expenses

Net profit for the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The Report of the Auditors is set out on page 4.

2017

2016

USD

UsD

The financial statements on pages 5 to 19 approved by the Director on April 12, 2017

For HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE, uuu,
v”” LUJ..," -
. Dang b

. C
Director
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended March 31, 2017
(In United States Dollars)

Contribution
Share Retained from
Capital earnings associate* Total
USD USD usD USD
As at 1 April, 2015 9,524 - - 9,524
Net profit for the year - - - -
Net movement for the year - - 21,198,906 21,198,906
As at 31 March, 2016 9,524 - 21,198,906 21,208,430
Net profit for the year - - - -
Net movement for the year - - 8,589,004 8,589,064
As at 31 March, 2017 9,524 B 29,787,970 29,797,494

*Represents amount contributed by Hazel Middle East FZE which is sub-ordinated against bank facifities availed by the
company. {refer note 9)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
The Report of the Auditors is set out on page 4.
The financial statements on pages 5 to 19 approved by the Director on April 12, 2017.

For HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZF,

“ <
Director

9D B:va:j““‘
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31,2017
(In United States Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit for the year

Operating profit before changes in working capital
(Increase) / Decrease in other receivables

Increase / (Decrease) in other payables

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
(Increase) in capital work-in-progress
Decrease/(Increase) in fixed deposits

Net cash flow (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Net funds contributed by associate
Net proceeds from the bank loan

Net cash from /(used in) financing activities

Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year

Notes

10

2017 2016

USD USD
2,208,278 7,938,158
(4,235,474) (874,518)
(2,027,196) 7,063,640
(53,406,010) (44,879,123)
10,384,354 (10,884,354)
(42,521,656) (55,763,477)
8,589,064 21,198,906
41,238,071 27,598,869
49,827,135 48,797,775
5,278,283 97,938
126,430 28,492
5,404,713 126,430

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Jinancial statements.

The Report of the Auditors is set out on page 4.

The financial statements on pages 5 to 19 approved by the Director on April 12, 2017.
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

1.1

1.2

1.3

Legal status and business activity

M/S HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE is registered as a free zone establishment with
limited liability with Hamriyah Free Zone Authority in the Emirate of Sharjah, UAE under
industrial license no.12340 and commercial license no. 11994.

The company is licensed to carry out biending and processing of chemicals and lube oil
products under industrial license and general trading (including import/export/trading of
bitumen, diesel, hydro carbon solvent, fuel oil & petroleum oil products under commercial
license,

The management and control of the company are vested with the Director, Mr.Saurabh
Deepak Sanghvi.

Share Capital

Authorized, issued and paid up capital of the company is made up of 35 shares of AED 1,000
each equal to AED 35,000/. The breakup of the shareholding at March 31, 2017 is as follows:

Percentage

N O + *

ame Nationality Holdin USD*

MUS Veritas (India) Litd India 100% 9,524
9,524

*1 USD is equal to AED 3.675

Significant accounting policies, estimates and judgments

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board (IASB), improvement/amendments to IFRS issued by
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), and applicable
requirements of the Free Zone and U.A.E. Law.

Standards adopted during the year

IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative - Amendments to IAS 1 - effective for annual periods beginning
on or after I January 20186.
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Applicability of the offsetting disclosures to
condensed interim financial statements-effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016.

1AS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization-
Amendments to [AS 16 and IAS 38 - effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective are disclosed below to
the extent that they are relevant to the Company financial statements. These standards and
interpretations will become effective for annual periods beginning on or after the dates as
respectively mentioned there against. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if
applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (1 January 2018);

IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customer - effective for annual periods beginning on
or after(l January 2018);

IFRS 16: Leases - effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16. The company
has assessed the impact of other standards, amendment to standards, revisions and
interpretations. Based on the assessment, the other standards, amendments to standards,
revisions and interpretations have no material impact on the financial statements of the
company.

The significant accounting policies adopted, estimates and judgments followed, are as
follows:

Significant accounting estimates and judgments:

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE

Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

The company makes estimates and assumptions companying the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, may differ from the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities at 31 March 2017 are discussed below.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the company has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising
from a past event, and cost to settle the obligation are both probable and are able to reliably
measured.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the probability
of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not
recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Carrying values of fixed assets

Residual values are assumed to be zero unless a reliable estimate of the current value can be
obtained for similar assets of ages and conditions that are reasonably expected to exist at the
end of the assets’ estimated useful lives.

Doubtful debt provision

Management regularly undertakes a review of the amounts of receivables owed to the
company either from third parties or from related parties and assesses the likelihood of non-
recovery. Such assessment is based upon the age of the debts, historic recovery rates and
assessed creditworthiness of the debtor. Based on the assessment, assumptions are made as to
the level of provisioning required.

Impairment

At each reporting date, management conducts an assessment of fixed assets and all financial
assets to determine whether there are any indications that they may be impaired. In the
absence of such indications, no further action is taken. If such indications do exist, an analysis
of each asset is undertaken to determine its net recoverable amount and if this is below its
carrying amount, a provision is made.
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

31

3.2

Finance leases

Leases in terms of which company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, assets acquired by way of
finance lease is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present
value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease. Lease payments are
apportioned between the outstanding liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
assets are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an
expense in the income statement on a straight line basis over lease term.

Significant accounting policies:
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and identified
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprise of purchase price, levies, duties and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the assets into its working condition.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All expenditures
connected with specific assets during the installation and construction period are carried under
capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to property, plant and equipment as when they
are available for use. All those expenditures which are not connected with any specific assets
during the construction phase of the project are carried under pre-operating expenses. Once
the project is completed, these expenditures will be allocated to the specific assets.

Pre-operating expenses

All those expenditures which are not connected with any specific assets during the
construction phase of the project are carried under capital work-in-progress (pre-operating
expenses). Once the project is completed, these expenditures will be allocated to the specific
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

3.3

34

3.5

38

3.7

3.8

3.9

Trade and other receivables

Trade & other receivables are stated at their nominal value reduced by appropriate allowances
for estimated doubtful debts. Bad debts are writien off as they arise when there is no
possibility of recovery.

Trade and other payables:

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid for goods or services received, whether or
not invoiced by the supplier.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalized during
the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in Statement of comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.

Staff end of service benefits:
Staff end of service benefits are accounted on accrual basis,
Revenue recognition:

Sales represent net amount invoiced for goods delivered during the year. Sales are recognized
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer.

Impairment:

The carrying amount of the assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets recoverable
amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of the
asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses, if any, are
recognised in the income statement.

Foreign currency transactions:

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into United States Dollars (USD) at the rate
of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction. Assets and liabilities expressed in foreign
currencies are translated into USD at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
Resulting exchange gain or loss is taken to the income siatement.
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

3.10

3.1

312

Installment plans:

Future installments payable under installment plans net of finance charges are included under
non-current and current liabilities with the corresponding asset values recorded as fixed assets
and depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Payments are apportioned between the
finance element charged to income statement and the capital element, which reduces the
capital amount outstanding.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement comprise of cash and
cheques on hand, bank balance in current accounts, deposits free of encumbrance with a
maturity date of three months or less from the date of deposit and highly liquid investments
with a maturity date of three months or less from the date of investment.

Dividend:

Dividend is paid out of retained earnings, when declared.
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates

Notes to the Financial Statemenis
For the year ended March 31, 2017

4 Capital work-in-progress

Direct capital expenses
Indirect capital pre-operative expenses

5 Cash and bank balances

Bank balances in:
Current accounts#
Fixed deposit* (refer note 9)

2017 2016
UsD UsD
98,689,195 50,510,374
12,922,323 7,695,134
111,611,518 58,205,508
2017 2016
USD USD
5,404,713 126,430
10,884,354
5,404,713 11,010,784

#includes an amount of USD 3,969,048/~ held under Debt Service Account as per inter-credit agreement.

*Deposit is under lien against the bank borrowings.

o Other receivables

Advance to a contractor#
Loans, deposits & other advances

2017
USD

1,257,541
11,709

1,269,250

2016

UsD
3,431,675
45,853
3477528

#Balance represents advance given to the contractor which is secured against the bank guarantee.

7 Non-current liabilities

Syndicated term loans:
Conventional term loan (refer note 9
Islamic facitity gefer note 9)
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50,451,320
25,159,737
75,611,057

2016
USD

25,579,083
12,762,157
38,341,240




HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

8 Other payables

2017 2016

USD USD
Due to a related party (refer note # 11) 7,693,269 3,772,437
Payable to a contractor 540,660 8,573,049
Other payables 61,537 196,852
Provisions 613,210 601,812

8,908,676 13,144,150

9 Bank borrowings

2017 2016

USD USD
Syndicated Term Loan: *
Conventional term loan 2,647,392 -
Islamic facility”™ 1,320,862 -

3,968,254 -
Syndicated term loan @
Total Syndicated term loan (conventional} outstanding 33,098,712 25,579,083
Payable afier next 12 months 30,451,320 25,579,083
Payable within next 12 months 2,647,392
Syndicated term facility (Islamic ) @
Total Syndicated term facility (Islamic) outstanding 26,480,599 12,762,157
FPayable afier next 12 months 25,159,737 12,762,157
Payable within rext 12 months 1,320,862 -

*ds per InterCreditor Agreement dated September 07, 2015, company has been sanctioned the Syndicated
Facility of AED 350 million (Conventional facility of AED 233.5 million & Islamic facility of AED 116.5
million) to build the storage tanks and related facilities. The term loans are payable in 24 equal quarterly
installments starting from September 2017,

“Represenis Islamic facility under Istisna'a Agreement and Forward Lease Agreement dated September 07,
2015,

@Represents partial disbursement of term loans under conventional facility and Islamic Jacility to build the
storage tanks and related facilities,

The bank facilities are secured against; —

1 Morigage over any immoveable property constructed on the project land by company in favour of security

agent.
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

10

11

=~ O b Rt by

Contractors all risk insurance policy.
Personal guarantee of Mr. Nitin Kumar Didwania.
Joint and several corporate guaraniees from Veritas India Limited, Hazel Middle East FZE and Veritas
International FZE.
Sub-ordination of the amount of contribution from the shareholder and associate.
Assignment of material contract, receivables account and insurance policies.
Fixed deposit under lien against bank borrowings.
In addition, there are various conditions and financial covenants attached to the bank facility.
Cash and cash equivalents
2017 2016
USD USD
Bank balances in:
Current accounts 5,404,713 126,430
5,404,713 126,430

Related party transactions

The entity enters into transactions with other entities that fall within the definition of a related
party as contained in IAS 24, Related Party Disclosures. Such transactions are in the normal
course of business and at terms that correspond to those on normal arms-length transactions
with third parties. Related parties comprise entities under common ownership and /or
common management and control; their partners and key management personnel.

The Entity believes that the terms of such transactions are not significantly different from
those that could have been obtained from third parties.

Transactions with related parties

The nature of significant related party transactions and their amounts involved were as
follows:

2017 2016
Due to a related a party USD USD
Hazel Middie East FZE-UAE 7,693,269 3,772,437
7,693,269 3,772,437

The Entity also receives funds from its related parties as and when required.
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

12

Financial instruments

Financial instruments of the company comprises of cash at bank, other receivables and &
other payables.

Credit risk

Financial assets, which potentially expose the company to concentration of credit risk
comprise principally bank balances and other receivables.

The Company's bank accounts are placed with high credit quality financial institutions.

There is no significant concentration of credit risk from other receivables situated within
UAE and outside the industry in which the company operates.

Currency risk

There are no significant exchange rate risks as substantially all the financial assets and
financial liabilities are denominated in US Dollars or Arab Emirates Dirhams to which the
conversion is pegged.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The company's exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company's long terms debt obligations
with floating interest rates.

The company is exposed to interest rate risk on its interest bearing liabilities.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of changes in the Capital work-in-progress
to reasonably possible changes in inferest rates with all other variables held constant as
interest cost is being charged to the capital work in progress. The sensitivity of capital work
in progress is the effect of assumed changes in the interest rates on company's result for one
year, based on the floating rate financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March.

Basis
points 2017 2016
USD USD
Effect on capital work-in-progress +/-50 265,4%4 127,895
Effect on capital work-in-progress +/-25 132,747 63,948
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017
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14

15

16
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Director

Fair values

Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities. The fair values of
financial instruments are not materially different from their carrying value.

Contingent liabilities
Except for the following and ongoing business commitments in the normal course of business,
there has been no other known contingent liabilities on the company as on the financial

position date.

Capital & other commitments

Except for the following there have been no other known capital & purchase commitments
on the company as on the financial position date,

2017 2016

USD UsSDh
Commitment in respect of goods & services 23,122,442 45,336,612
Lease commitment* 31,700,680 31,700,680

*The company has also entered into a forward lease agreement in which bank will lease the assets to the
company. The total amount of commitment in velation to the principal amount of lease is AED 116,500,000/-
(Equivalent to USD 31,700,680). The lease will commence once the assets under construction are completed.

The company is liable to pay a commitment fee of 0.25 percent per annum on the unutilized
amount of the loan value.

Comparative figures

Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the
presentation adopted in the current year.

Others
Management confirms there were no loans & other liabilities except showing in the statement
of financial position.

P.O. Box, 54073
Sharjah - U.A.E.
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To,

The Shareholder,

My/s. Veritas International FZE,
JAFZA, Dubai- UAE.

Auditor’s Report

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s. Veritas International FZE, JAFZA,
Dubai, UAE which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31st March 2017, the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2017 and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information,
Management'’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as the
management determines necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free

from material misstatement; whether due to fraud or errot.
Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procecdures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.
Page 2
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion

Opinion

Int our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of M/s. Veritas International FZE, JAFZA, Dubai, UAE as at 31 December 2016 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2017 is in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

We have obtained all information, which we considered necessary for our audit. Based on the
information available, during the year, there were no contraventions of the UAE Federal
Commercial Companies Law No. 2 of 2015 (as amended), The Jebel Ali Free Zone Companies
Implementing Regulations 2016 and the Memorandum of Association of the company during the
year under audit; which might have a material effect on the financial position of the company or on

the results of its operations for the year.

For ASP AUDITING = |

May 17, 2017. S
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Veritas Internatioal FZE
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE

STATEMENT QOF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31st March 2017
ASSETS Note Mar-17 Mar-16
USD UsD
NON -CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment D - -
Investment 6 74 74
Total Non-Current Assets A 74 74
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Bank Balances 7 17,811 20,638
Trade & Other Receivables 8 62,818,159 50,141,295
Inventory 9 1,411,200 -
Other Current Assets 10 19,175 312,319
Total Current Assets B 64,266,345 50,474,252
TOTAL ASSETS A+B 64,266,419 50,474,326
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share Capital 4 4,353,742 4,353,742
Shareholder's Loan Account 14 639,797 6,215,030
Retained Eamings 15 29,481,940 20,162,043
Total Equity C 34,475,479 30,730,815
(Cont.)
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Veritas Internatioal FZE
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Cont.)
As at 31st March 2017

LIABILITIES Note

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Total Non Current Liabilities D

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Bank Borrowings 1
Trade & Other Payables 12
Accruals and Provisions 13

Total Current Liabilities E

TOTAL LIABILITIES D+E

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES C+D+E

The notes on pages 9 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
These financial statements were approved on May 15, 2017

/)
For Veritas Internatioal FZE

4

=
Authorised Signatory

The report of the auditors is set on page 2 and 3
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Mar-17 Mar-16
UsD usD

17,150,000 17,150,000
12,583,871 2,547,152

57,069 46,359
29,790,940 19,743,511
29,790,940 19,743,511
64,266,419 50,474,326
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Veritas Internatioal FZE
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOS5 AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31st March 2017

ASP

Note Mar-17 Mar-16
usD usD

Continuing Operations
Sales 165,938,739 153,294,479
Cost of Sales ¥ (154,887,773)  (144,108,016)
Gross Profit 11,050,966 9,186,463
Other Income 108 =
Operating Expenses
General & Administration Expenses G (69,367) (63,137)
Financial Charges H {1,400,585) (793,483)
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment < -
Total Operating Expenses (1,469,952} {856,620)
Profit for the year 9,581,122 8,329,843
Other Comprehensive Income = 5
Total Comprehensive Income For the year 9,581,122 8,329,843
Profit for the year:
Atiributable to Shareholder 9,581,122 8,329,843

The notes on pages 9 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements,
These financial statements were approved on May 15, 2017

For Veritas Inten{at;laal FZE
[I‘“——-——— —

—=\__|

o

b

Authorised Signe;f'ury
/

The report of the auditors is set on page 2 and 3
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Veritas Internatioal FZE
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31st March 2017

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit as per Profit & Loss Account

Adjustment for non-cash items

Depreciation

Operating Cash Flow before changes in net operating assets

Changes in net Working Capital

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade & Other Receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables
Increase / (Decrease) in Accruals & Provisions

Net Cash Flow from / (used) from Working Capital

Cash flow from Financing Activities

Dividend paid

Net Changes in ShareCapital Shareholders Current Account
Net Cash Flow from / (used) in Financing Activities

Cash flow from Investing Activities

Net Changes in Property, Plant and Equipment
Net Changes in Investments

Net Cash Flow from / (used) in Investing Activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents
Cash & Cash equivalents in the beginning of the year
Cash & Cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 9 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.

These financial stx}télments were approved on May 15, 2017
|
—For Veritas Internatioal FZE

Authorised Signajtory
L

The report of the auditors is set on page 2 and 3
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Mar-17
usD

9,581,122

9,581,122

(12,676,864)
293,144
10,036,719
10,710
(3,747 491)

(261,225)
(5,575,233)
(5,836,458)

(2,827)
20,638
17,811

ASP

Mar-16
UsD

8,329,843

8,329,843

(12,302,397)
(310,768)
(5,650,648)
46,359
(18,217,454)

(272,109)
10,159,148
9,887,039

(74)
(74}

(646)
21,284
20,638
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Veritas Internatioal FZE
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31st March 2017

— S St Rt
uspD UsSD UsD usD
Balance as on 01st April 2015 272,109 137,515 12,104,309 12,513,933
Net Movements of the year 4,081,633 6,077,515 - 10,159,148
Profit of the year - - 8,329,843 8,329,843
Dividend Paid - - (272,109) (272,109)
Balance as on 01st April 2016 4,353,742 6,215,030 20,162,043 30,730,815
Net Movements of the year - (5.575,233) - (5,575,233)
Profit of the year - - 9,581,122 9,581,122
Dividend Paid - - (261,225) (261,225)
Balance as on 31st March 2017 4,353,742 639,797 29,481,940 34,475,479

The notes on pages 9 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
These financial statements were approved on May 15, 2017

For Veritas lntetéqlﬁoal FZE

TR —

Authorised Signatory

L

The report of the auditors is set on page 2 and 3
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Veritas International FZE
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31st March 2017

1 Legal Status and Activities

11 M/s. Veritas International FZF, is Limited Liability Free Zone Establishment with Limited
Liability, registered with Commercial Registration Department, Jebel Ali Free Zone
Authorities, Jebel Ali, Dubai, UAE vide General Trading License number 133949. The
original license was granted on the 11t day of September 2012.

12 The registered address of the Establishment is Office No. TPOFCB 0231, Jebel Ali, Dubai,
UAE.

1.3 The shareholder of the Establishment is:
M/s. Veritas (India) Limited, Incorporated in India : 100% Holder

14 Mr. Arpit ManishKumar Shah, Indian National has been appointed as the Manager of the

company.

1.5 The Establishment is licensed to engage in the activities of General Trading. Currently, the
establishment is engaged in trading of Chemicals & Petro Chemicals.

2  Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

21 New and Revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the financial statements

The following new and revised IFRSs have been adopted in these financial statements. The
application of these new and revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts
reported for the current and prior years but may affect the accounting for future transactions or

arrangements.

Page &
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Veritas International FZE
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE

New and revised YFRSs Summary of requirements
Amendment to IFRS 1 The first amendment replaces references to a fixed

"First time adoption’, on hyperinflation and fixed dates”  date of ‘1 January 2004" with ‘the Date of transition
to IFRSs’, thus eliminating the need for companies
adopting IFRSs for the first time to restate de-
recognition transaction that occurred before the date
of the second amendment provides guidances on
how an entity should resume presenting financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs after a period
when the entity was unable to comply with IFRSs
because its functional currency was subject to severe
hyperinflation.

These amendments are the part of [ASBs

Amendment to IFRS 7, comprehensive review of, off-balance sheet
‘Financial Instruments : Disclosures’ activities. The amendments promote transparency in
on transfer of financial asseis. the reporting of transfer transactions and improve

users’ understanding of the risk exposure relating to
transfers of financial assets and the effect of those
risks on an entity’s financial position, particularly
those involving securitization of financial asset.

Amendment to IAS 12, Income taxes ’, Currently IAS 12, “Income taxes’, requires an entity

on deferred tax to measure the deferred tax relating to an asset
depending on whether the Entity expects to recover
the carrying amount of asset through use or sale. It
can be difficult and subjective to assess whether
recovery will be through use or through sale when
the asset is measured using the fair value model in
IAS 40 Investment Property.
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2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective and not early adopted

The Entity has not adopted the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but not yet

effective;

Pronouncement

Amendments to clarify the
classification and measurement of
share-based transactions un-16

Amendments to defer the effective date

to 1 January 2018 Sep-15
Clarifications to IFRS 15
Qriginal issue Jan-16

Effective date

Annual periods beginning on or after 1
2018

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

Managements anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations’ will have no

material impact on the financial statements of the entity in the period of initial application.

3 Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial

Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB),

Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)
and applicable rules and regulation of the UAE Law. The significant accounting policies, which

have been applied, are set out below:
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Veritas International FZE
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE
a) Accounting Convention;
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical Cost convention. The

accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Establishment.

b} Revenue recognition:
Income is recognized when it is earned, not necessarily when received. Expenses and charges

have been recognized when it was incurred, not necessarily when paid.

¢) Property, Plant & Equipment;
Property, Plant & Equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
identified impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, levies, duties and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition. The cost of property,
plant & equipment is depreciated using the Straight Line Method basis after considering the
average life of the asset, date of which it is put in to use and the depreciation has been provided

at the rate of 20% on all the assets on pro-rata basis

The Carrying value of Property, Plant & Equipment is viewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists and where the carrying value exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the
assets are written down to their recoverable amount, being the higher of their fair value less

costs to sell and their value in use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognized in profit or loss.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is
accounted for separately is capitalized and the carrying amount of the component that is
replaced is written off. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases
future economic benefits of the related item of property and equipment. All other expenditure

is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as the expense is incurred

Page 12
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Veritas International FZE
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE
The Assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and

adjusted prospectively if appropriate, at each financial year end.

d) Foreign Currency Transactions:
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in US Dollars at the approximate rate of exchange
ruling at the time of the transaction. Assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies at the
statement of financial position date are converted into US Dollars at the year end rate of
exchange. All foreign currency gains and losses are booked in the statement of income as they

arise.

e) Revenue;
Income represents the invoiced value of goods sold/services rendered during the year, net of

discounts and returns.

f) Inventory:
Inventory is stated at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. The cost of closing
inventory is determined on the basis of Weight cost average. Net Realizable Value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated cost of completion and cost of disposal. A general
provision for slow moving items has been made and adjusted with the value of the closing
stock. These provisions are valuated and determined by the management as on statement

financial position there is no inventory.

g} Trade receivables:
The schedule of trade debtor's represents amounts falling due as on the date of Statement of
financial position. Trade receivables normally require the amounts to be received within 180
days from the date of invoice. Bad debts are written off as and when they arise. Accounts

receivables are stated net of provision for doubtful debts and discounts.

h) Employees’ Terminal benefits:
Provision is made in accounts for end of service benefits due to employees in accordance with
UAE federal labour Laws No (8) year 1980 and Jebel Ali Free Zone Rules & Regulations.
Provision is made for amounts payable under the UAE Labour Law applicable to employees

Accumulated year of service at the date of the Statement of Financial Position.
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Veritas International FZE
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE
i) Rounding off:
The figures stated in the attached financial statements are rounded off to the nearest US Dollars.

j} Fair Value of financial instruments:
The value of all classes of financial assets and financial liabilities, as recorded in the statement

of financial position approximate the fair value of these assets and liabilities.

k) General:
In the opinion of the management all the assets as shown in the financial statements are existing
and realizable at the amount shown against and there are no liabilities against the

Establishment contingent or otherwise not included in the above financial statements.

1) Profit and Loss account:
The Establishment's profit is arrived at after charging all expenses, incurred in day to day

operations of the business and in maintaining property, plant & equipment.

m) Trade Payable:
The schedule of Trade Creditors represents amounts falling due as on the date of statement of
financial position. Accounts payable are normally settled within 90 days. Liabilities are
recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods of services whether or not billed to
the Establishment.

n} Inflationary Factor:

No adjustments have been made in these financial statements to identify the inflationary factor.

0} Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The entity management set out the entity’s overall business strategies and its risk management
policy. The Entity’s overall financial risk management program seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the financial performance of the entity. The entity policies include financial
risk management policies covering specific areas, such as market risk (inctuding foreign
exchange risk, interest risk, liquidity risk and credit risk). Periodic reviews are undertaken to

ensure that the entity’s policy guidelines are complied with.
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Veritas International FZE
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE
There has been no change to the entity’s exposure to the financial risks or the manner in which

it manages and measures the risk.

The entity is exposed to the following risks related to financial instruments. The entity has not
framed formal risk management policies; however, the risks are monitored by management on
a continucus basis. The entity does not enter into or trade in financial instruments, investment
in securities, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative or risk management

purposes.

a} Foreign Currency risk management
The entity undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Hence,

exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise.

b) Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rest with the management which has
built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
entity’s short, medium and long term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The entity manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial

assets and liabilities.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the entity’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. The contractual maturities of the financial assets and financial liabilities
have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the financial position date

based on contractual repayment agreements were as follows:

Interest Bearing Non Interest Bearing
Particulars On Demand Withinl  More than On Withinl More
{Figures in USD) or Less than 3 Year 1 Year Demand or Year than
Months Less than 3 1
Months Year

As at 31¢ March 2017

Financial Assets
Cash and Bank
Balances 17,811
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Veritas International FZE
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE

Trade
Receivables - 62,818,159

TOTAL - - - 17,811 62,818,159 -

Financial
Liabilities
Trade

Payables 12,583,871

Bank Borrowings - 17,150,000 -
TOTAL - 17,150,000 - 12,583,871 - -

¢) Credit Risk Management
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the entity. The entity has adopted a policy of only dealing with
the credit worthy counterparties. The Entity’s exposure are continuously monitored and
their credit exposure is reviewed by the management regularly and the entity maintains

and allowances for doubtful debts based on expected collectability of all trade receivables.

The Establishment is exposed to credit risk on its Trade receivables as follows:

Particulars 31st March 2017 31st March 2016

Usp usD
Trade Receivables 62,818,159 50,141,295
TOTAL 62,818,159 50,141,295

The Establishment seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to banks by only dealing with
reputable banks and with respect to customers by setting limits for individual customers

and monitoring outstanding accounts receivable.
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Veritas International FZE

JAFZA, Dubai - UAE
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Establishment,
including cash and cash equivalents, the Establishment’s exposure to credit risk arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of

these instruments.

Trade receivables consist of a number of customers. Ongoing credit evaluation is
performed on the financial condition of trade receivables. Further details of credit risk on

trade and other receivable are disclosed in the notes to financial statements.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit- ratings assigned by international credit-ratings agencies.

d) Capital risk management
The Establishment’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Establishment’s

ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital. The director’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain
investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business
in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Establishment may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares
or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry, the Establishment
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total liabilities less Cash at Bank,

The Establishment manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of
changed in economic conditions. No Changes were made in the objectives, Policies or
Processes during the year ended 31st March 2017 and 31st March 2016. Capital Consists of
Share Capital, Shareholders Current Account and Retained Earnings measured at USD.
34,475,479 /- as at 31st March 2017 (2016 - USD. 30,730,815).
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Veritas International FZE
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE

€} Impairment of Accounts Receivable

An estimate of the collectible amount of trade receivables is made when collection of the
full amount is no longer probable. For individually significarit amounts, this estimation is
performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but
which are past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the

length of time past due, based on historical recovery rates.

At the reporting date, gross trade receivable was USD, 62818159~ (2016; USD.
50,141,295/-) with provision for doubtful debts USD. Nil/- (2016 USD. Nil/-). Any
difference between the amounts actually collected in future periods and the amounts

expected will be recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

f) Useful Lives of Property and Equipment
The Establishment’s management determines the estimated useful lives of its property and

equipment for calculating depreciation. This Estimate is determined after considering the
expected usage of the asset or physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual
value and useful lives annually and future depreciation charge would be adjusted where

the management believes the useful lives differ from previous estimates.

pP) Contingencies and commitments:

As at 31st March 2017 the Establishment doesn’t have any commitments other than the cheques
issued which are not yet presented in the bank for collection.

Exchange Rate Risk:
Since the main currencies of the financial instruments, other assets, liabilities and trading
transactions including purchase and sales are UAE Dirham's, Euros and US Dollars, the

Establishment is not exposed to any significant exchange rate risk.
Financial Charges:

The Financial Charges includes finance cost charges, other charges related to finance and bank

charges.

Page 18
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8) Corresponding Figures:
The corresponding figures of the previous year are comparable as these comprise the financial
position and operating results for the year ended 31st March 2016, while the current figures
comprised the financial position and operating results for the year ended 31st March 2017.
Reclassification has been made wherever necessary, for the purpose of better presentation of

financial information.

t) Operating Segments:
For management purpose the Establishment is organized into a single operating segment called
General Trading. Currently, the establishment is engaged in trading of Chemicals & Petro
Chemicals.

4 Share Capital Account: 31st March 2017

Authorized, Subscribed, Issued, Paid up Share Capital;

- 16 Shares of Dhs.1,000,000/ - each Dhs. 16,000,000/ - USD 4,353,742/ -
Held By
Shareholder and his holdings;
M/s. Veritas (India) Limited 16 shares Dhs. 16,000,000/ USD 4,353,742 /-
Total 16 shares Dhs. 16,000,000/~ USD 4,353,742/

5. Property, Plant & Equipment:
There is no property plant & equipment in the books of the establishment as on the date of

statement of financial position.
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31st March 2017
Noles fo the financial statements

Mar-17 Mar-16
usp usD
6. Investments in Subsidary
Shares of Veritas Global Pte. Singapore 74 74
74 74
The value of above Investments in Subsidary are confirmed by the management.
7.Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash and Bank Balance 17,811 20,638
17,811 20,638

Cash and Cash Equivalents are items, which are readily convertible to known amounts of Cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

8.Trade & Other Receivable
Trade Receivables 62,818,159 50,141,295
62,818,159 50,141,295
Ageing Analysis:
0 - 180 days 62,818,159 50,141,295

The company uses an allowance account when recognizing impairment losses on its receivables unless
otherwise determined that the likelihood of collection is remote, in which the Company direcily charges the
loss against its receivables. The management writes off receivables if after exhausting prudent collection
procedures, the Management assessed that the possibility of collection is remote.

The Management considers the all the trade receivables as good and hence has not made any provision for
bad and Doubtful debts.

9. Inventory
Value of Stock of Materials 1,411,200

1,411,200 -
Verification of stocks were carried out by the management at regular intervals to ascertain the existence of
slow-moving items, etc. No Provision for slow moving items have been made in the books of accounts as
there are no slow moving items forming part of the inventory.
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Mar-17 Mar-16
usD usp
10, Other Current Assets
Deposits 2,068 3,619
Loans & Advances 1,551 -
Prepayments 15,556 308,700
19,175 312,319

11. Bank Borrowings

Bank Loan 17,150,000 17,150,000
17,150,000 17,150,000

12, Trade & Other Payable

Creditors for Trade 12,583,871 2,547,152
12,583,871 2,547,152

Ageing Analysis:

0 - 90 days 12,583,871 2,547,152

13. Accruals & Provisions

Accrued Expenses 57,069 46,359
57,069 46,359

14. Shareholder's Loan Account

Balance at the beginning of the year 6,215,030 -
Paid during the year (6,575,233) 6,215,030
Balance at the end of the year 639,797 6,215,030

15. Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 20,162,043 12,104,309
Add: Net profit for the year 9,581,122 8,329,843
Less: Dividend Paid (261,225) (272,109)
Balance at the end of the year 29,481,940 20,162,043
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Notes to the financial statements

F. Cost of Sales
Net Purchases (including Direct Cost)

Closing Stock

G. General and Administration Expenses
Rent & Accommodation
Printing & Stationery
Insurance
Travelling Expenses
Communication And Utilities
License, Professional & Legal Charges
Conveyance Expenses
General Expenses

Page 22

ASP

31st March 2017
Mar-17 Mar-16
UsD UsD
156,298,973 144,108,016
156,298,973 144,108,016
1,411,200 -
154,887,773 144,108,016
15,556 15,556
1,215 1,109
1,020 -
8,312 -
11,772 -
9,671 10,068
2,530 2,606
19,291 33,798
69,367 63,137
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GV INVESTMENT FINANCE COMPANY LTD
COMMENTARY OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

The directors present the audited financial statements of GV Investment Finance Company Ltd (the “Company™)
for the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

RESULTS

The results for the year are shown in the statement of comprehensive income and related notes.
DIRECTORS

The present membership of the Board is set out on page 2.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period, which present fairly
the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company. In preparing those financial
statements, the directors are required to:

. seject suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

Company will continue in business.

The directors have confirmed that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
staternents.

The directors are respensible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Mauritian Companies Act 2001. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

AUDITOR

The auditor, Clarkson & Associates Chartered Accountants, has indicated its willingness to continue in office
until the next Annval Meeting.
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CERTIFICATE FROM THE SECRETARY UNDER SECTION 166(d) OF THE COMPANIES ACT
2001

We certify to the best of our knowledge and belief that we have filed with the Registrar of Companies all such
returns as are required of GV Investment Finance Company Ltd under the Companies Act 2001 during the
financial year ended 31 March 2017 ST

D=

for AFaicorpl{ Mauritius) Limited

Secrctary

Registered Office:

6% Floor, Tower 1
NeXTeracom Building
Ebene Cybercity
Mauritiug

Date:
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CHARTLERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

GV INVESTMENT FINANCE COMPANY LTD

Report on the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of GV Investment Finance Company Ltd (the “Company”) set out
on pages 8 to 18 which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 Marcl 2017, and the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and staternent of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinicn, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at
31 March 2017, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} and comply with the Mauritius Companies Act 2001.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statemenis section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (EESBA Code) Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

Other Information comprises the Directors’ Report and Secretary’s Report. Qur opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance and conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial staternents in
accordance with IFRSs and in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial staternents, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. -
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CHARTLERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

GV INVESTMENT FINANCE COMPANY LTD

Report on the financial statements {continued)
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from
fraud or errar and are considered material if], individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in aceordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also :

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
ervor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control,

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty ecxists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
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CHARTERED ACCUOULNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

GV INVESTMENT FINANCE COMPANY LTD

Report on the financial statements (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audir of the financial statements (continued)

This report is made solely to the Company’s member, in accordance with Section 205 of the Mauritius
Companies Act. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s member, those
matters that we are required to state to it in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent

permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s member, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Report on ether legal and regulatory requirements
Muauritius Companies Act 2001
We have no relationship with or interests in the Company other than in our capacity as auditors.

We have obtained all information and explanations we have required.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears from our
examination of those records.

Clarkson & Associates Asif Beebeejaun ACA
Chartered Accountants Signing Partner

Licensed by FRC
Date: ...ccovvviiiiiiniinann
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GV INVESTMENT FINANCE COMPANY LTD
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

INCOME

EXPENSES
Administrative expenses
Audit fees

Licence fees

Disbursements
Bank charges

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation
LOSS AFTER TAXATION

Other comprehensive income

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR

The notes on pages 11 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Auditors’ report on pages 5 and 6.

Note

USD

2017 2016
USD USD
4,667 4,784
713 690
2,100 2,100
924 1,140

30 175
(8,434) (8,889)
(8,434) (8,889)
(8,434) (8,889)




GV INVESTMENT FINANCE COMPANY LTD
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

2017 2016

Notes USD UusD
ASSETS
Current assets
Prepayments 438 6,127
Cash and cash equivalents 435 1,178
Total assets USD 873 7,305
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Stated capital 4 10,000 10,000
Share application monies 14,990 14,990
Revenue deficit (26,809) (18,375)
Total equity (1,819) 6,615
Current liability
Accruals 5 2,692 690
Total equity and fiabilities USD 873 7,305

Approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on
1ts behalf by:

A"

Director

and signed on

The notes on pages 11 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditors” report on pages S and 6.
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GV INVESTMENT FINANCE COMPANY LTD
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Stated Share Revenue
capital application deficit Total
monies
USsSDh UsD UsD UsDh
At 01 April 2015 10,000 - (9,486) 514
Share application monies - 14,950 - 14,990
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (B.889) (8,889
At 31 March 2016 USD 10,000 14,950 (18,375) 6,615
At 0] April 2016 10,000 14,990 (18,375) 6,615
Total comprehensive loss for the year - . (3.434) (8,434)
At 31 March 2017 USD 10,000 14,990 (26,809) (1,819)

The notes on pages 11 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Aunditors’ report on pages 5 and 6.



GV INVESTMENT FINANCE COMPANY LTD
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

11

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before taxation
Operating loss before working capital changes

Working capital changes
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in accruals

Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Share application monies
Net cash generated from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of vear

The notes on pages 11 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Auditors’ report on pages 5 and 6.

2017 2016
USD USD
(8,434) (3,889)
(8,434) (8,889)
5,689 (5,689)
2,002 (1,680)
(743) (16,258)

- 14,990

- 14,990

(743) (1,268)
1,178 2,446
435 1,178
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GV INVESTMENT FINANCE COMPANY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

1. GENERAL

GV Investment Finance Company Ltd (the “Company™) was incorporated in Mauritius on 30 May 2015 under the
Companies Act 2001 as a private company with liability limited by shares and holds a Category 1 Global Business
Licence issued by the Financial Services Commission. The Company's registered office is at ¢/o Amicorp
(Mauritius) Limited, 6® Floor, Tower 1, NeXTeracom Building, Ebene, Mauritius.

The principai activity of the Company is to act as an investment holding company.

The financial statements of the Company are expressed in United States Dollars ("USD"). The Company’s
functional currency is USD, the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below.
(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with Internationai Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™} and comply with the Companies Act 2001. The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting year.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual
results ultimately may differ from these estimates.

As at 31 March 2017, there were no areas involving higher degree of judgement, nor any areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant in the financial statements.

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in the current year

In the current financiaf year, the Company has adopted all the new and revised IFRSs and Interpretations of
IFRS (“INT IFRS™) that are relevant to its operations. The adoption of these new/revised IFRSs and INT IFRSs
does not result in changes to the Company’s accounting policies and has no material effect on the amounts
reported for the year.

(c) New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the financial year
ended 31 March 2017 and not early adopted

The directors have assessed the relevance of the standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards
that have been pubiished and are not mandatory for the Company and which the Company has not early adopted

and have concluded that these will not have a significant impact on the financial statements for the year ended
3] March 2017.

= IFRS 9 Financial Instruments {as revised in 2014) (effective 1 January 2018)

. JFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts (effective 1 January 2016)

. IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective 1 January 2017)

" IFRS 16 Leases (effective 1 January 2019)

. IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration (effective 1 January 2018)



(d)

(e)

)

()

(h)

GV INVESTMENT FINANCE COMPANY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

2.

(c)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the financial year
ended 31 March 2017 and not early adopted (continued)

" Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

¥

P

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' — Deletion of short-term
exemptions for first-time adopters (effective 1 January 2018)

IFRS 12 'Disclosures of Other Entities' — Clarifies the scope of IFRS 12 by specifying that its
disclosure requirements (except for those in IFRS 12.B17) apply to an entity's interests irrespective of
whether they are classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale or as
discontinued operations in accordance with IFRS 5.(retrospectively in accordance with IAS § (effective
| January 2017)

IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' — Measuring an associate or a joint venture at
fair value. Clarifies that a qualifying entity is able to choose between applying the equity method or
measuring an investment in an associate or joint venture at fair value through profit or loss, separately
for each associate or joint venture at initial recognition of the associate or joint venture (retrospectively
in accordance with [AS 8 for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, however early
application is permitted).

. Amendments to IAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative (effective 1 January 2017)

. Amendments to [AS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (effective 1 January
2017y

" Amendments to IFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (effective
[ January 2018)

" Amendments to IFRS 4 - Applying IFRS 2 Fmancial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
(effective | January 2018)

Receivables

Receivables are carried at anticipated realisable value. An estimate is made for doubtful receivables based on a
review of all outstanding amounts at the period end. Bad debts are written off during the period in which they
are identified.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash at bank. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Equity

Stated capital is determined using the nominal values of shares that have been issued.

Income

Interest income is recognised on the accruals basis unless collectability is in doubt.

Expenses recognition

All expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis in the statement of comprehensive income.
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GV INVESTMENT FINANCE COMPANY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(i) Income tax

Income taxes currently payable are provided for in accordance with the existing legislation of the various
countries in which the Company operates.

() Equity

Stated capital is determined using the nominal values of shares that have been issued.

(k) Income

[nterest income is recognised on the accruals basis unless collectability is in doubt.

H Expenses recognition

Al expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis in the statement of comprehensive income.
{m) Income tax

Income taxes currently payable are provided for in accordance with the existing legisiation of the various
countries in which the Company operates.

(n) Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes. Currently enacted tax rates are
used to determine deferred tax.

The principal temporary differences arise from tax losses carried forward, Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

(0) Payables

Payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
mterest method.

(43} Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. At the time of the effective
payment, the provision is deducted from the corresponding expenses. All known risks at reporting date are
reviewed in detaj} and provision is made where necessary.

(@ Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Company if they have the ability, directly or indirectly, to controf the
Company or exercise significant influence over the Company in making financial and operating decisions.
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GV INVESTMENT FINANCE COMPANY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(r) Financial instruments

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position consist of cash and cash equivalents and
accruals. The particular recognition method adopted is disciosed in the individual policy statement associated
with it.

(s) Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Company using the exchange
rate prevailing at the dates of the transaction. Monetary items are retranslated at spot rates at the reporting date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end exchange rate are recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items that are measured at fair value, such as equities held at fair value
through the statement of comprehensive income, are reported as part of profit or loss and translated using
exchange rates at the reporting date,

(t) Impairment of assets

At each reporting date the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered any impairment loss. When an indication of impairment loss exists,
the carrying amount of the asset is assessed and written down to its recoverable amount.

3. TAXATION
() Income tax

The Company under current laws and regulations is liable to pay income tax on its net income at the rate of 15%.
The Company is, however, entitled to a tax credit equivalent to the higher of actual foreign tax suffered and a
deemed tax credit of 80% of Mauritius tax payable on its foreign source income thus reducing its maximum
effective tax rate to 3%. No Mauritian capital gains tax is payable on profits arising from sale of securities, and
any dividends paid by the Company to its shareholder will be exempt in Mauritius from any withholding tax.

At 31 March 2017, the Company had no income tax liability as a result of accumulated tax losses of USD 25,309
(2016: USD 16,875) carried forward to be offset against future taxable profits.

(i) Deferred taxation

A deferred tax asset of USD 759 (2016: USD 506) has not been recognised in respect of the tax losses carried
forward as the directors consider that it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the unused tax loss can be utilised.

(iii) Income tax reconciliation

The tax charge of the Company’s loss differs from the theoretical amount that would rise using the tax rate of
15% as follows:-
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3. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

(iii) TIncome tax recenciliation (continued)

2017 2016

UsD UsDh
Loss before taxation (8,434) (8,889}
Tax calculated at 15% {1,265) (1,335)
Disaliowed expenses - -
Deemed foreign tax credit 1,012 1,068
Deferred tax asset not recognised 253 267
Tax charge USb - -
4, STATED CAPITAL

2017 2016
Issued and fully paid: UsSD USD
10,000 Ordinary shares at USD1 each 10,006 10,000
Tax charge USD 16,000 10,000
5. ACCRUALS

2017 2016

USD UsD
Clarkson & Associates 690 690
Amicorp (Mauritins) Limited 2,002 -
At end of the year UsDh 2,692 690

6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the last financial year, the sole shareholder of the Company had subscribed for additional shares
amounting to USD 14,990 ito the Company. As at 31 March 2017, shares have not been issued against the
share application monies.

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(a) Financial visk factors

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the
risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Company’s activities.

The Company's activity exposes it to the following main types of risks that are associated with the financial
mstruments and market in which it intends to trade:
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{(aj Financial risk factors (continued)
(i} Interest rate risk

As the Company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Company's income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the potential toss that the Company would incur if counter parties fail to perform pursuant
to the terms of their obligations to the Company. The Company is not exposed to credit risk during the year.

(iii)  Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised monetary assets and liabilities
are denominated in a currency other than the Company’s functional currency. There is no significant exchange
rate risk as substantially all financial assets and financial liabilities are denominated in USD.

(iv) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company wili not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity 1s to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Residual undiscounted contractual maturities of financial liabilities are presented below:

Carrying Within One to More than

Amount one year five years 5 years
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
USD USD USD USD

Accruals 2,692 2,692 - -
Balance at end of year USD 2,692 2,692 - -
Carrying Within One to More than

Amount one year five years 5 years
2016 2016 2016 2016 2016
USD uUsh UsDh UsDh

Accruals 690 , - -
Balance at end of year UsSDh 690 690 - -

v Financial instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and accruals approximate their fair values.



18

GV INVESTMENT FINANCE COMPANY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns to the shareholder and benefits of other stakeholders. In order to properly
manage the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to the shareholder or have
recourse to its shareholder or related parties for funding.

8. FINANCIAL SUPPORT — GOING CONCERN

The Company is dependent on the financial support of its shareholder. The directors of the Company are not
aware of any facts indicating that the financial support of the shareholder will not be forthcoming. Accordingly,
the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

9. HOLDING COMPANY

The holding company of GV Investment Finance Company Ltd is Veritas Agro Ventures Private Limited
registered in Mumbai, India.



VERITAS AMERICAS TRADING INC

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Amount in (X)

Particulars

Note

As At
31st March, 2017

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capital

(b) Reserves and Surplus

(2) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
(c ) Other Non-Current Liabilities

(3) Current Liabilities

(a) Short-Term Borrowings
(b) Trade Payables

(c) Other Current Liabilities
(d) Short-term Provisions

Total Equity & Liabilities
I1.ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible Assets
(i) Inangible Assets (Goodwill on Merger)
(i) Inangible Assets (Goodwill on Consolidation)

(iii) Work-in-Progress

(b) Non-current Investments
(c) Long-term Loans & Advances

(2) Current Assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Trade Receivables

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(d) Short-term Loans and Advances
(e) Other Current Assets

Total Assets

67,610
(1,252,333)

3,427,401

2,242 678

2,242,678

2,242,678




VERITAS AMERICAS TRADING INC
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Amountin (%)
Sr. Pt Note For the year endled
No 31 March, 2017
| Revenue from Operations _
1l Other Income
m ll. Total Revenue (I +11) o
IV |Expenses:
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade -
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-trade =
Employee Benefit Expenses
Finance Costs 144,981
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Operation and Other Expenses 498,143
Total Expenses (i) 643,124
Profit before Exceptional and Extraordinary Items and
" Tax ' (m-1v) (643,124)
Vi Exceptional Items £
Vil Profit before Extraordinary Items and Tax (V - V1) (643,124)
VIl  |Extraoridinary Items
IX Profit before Tax (VII - VIII) (643,124)
X Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax -
(2) Current Tax expense relating to prior years 2
(3) Deferred Tax 4
Profit(Loss) From the Period From Continuing
Xl |Operations (IX-X) (643,124)
Xl |Profit/(Loss) From Discontinuing Operations 2
Xl |Tax expense of Discounting Operations -
XIV Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing Operations (X! - XlII) 5
XV |Profit/(Loss) for the Period (XI + XIV) (643,124)
XVI |Earning per Equity Share:
(1) Basic (9.51)
(2) Diluted (9.51)




VERITAS INFRA LLP

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2017

As At

Particulars Note
March 31, 2017

I. CONTRIBUTION AND LIABILITIES

{1) Partner's Fund
(a)Contribution
Fixed 1 1,000,000
(b) Reserve and Surplus(surplus being 2 - 16,620
the profit/loss made during the year)

(2) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings 3 21,019

(3) Current Liabilities

(a) Trade Payables 4 6,600

Total Equity & Liabilities 1,010,999

IILASSETS

(1) Current Assets

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 1,010,999

Total Assets 1,010,999

As per our report attached

FOR SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS For VERITAS INFRA LLP

LLPIN: AAH-9198

o 0 DWeng !

58
SHABBIR S BAGASRAWALA NITIN DIDWANIA  VERITAS (INDIA) LTD
PARTNER 7T, PARTNER AUTHORISED SIGNATORY

Membership No. : 039865 W

Place : Mumbai
Date: |5_ 05-20\%




VERITAS INFRA LLP

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

For the year
Sr.No Particulars Note ended
March 31, 2017

| Other Income a

TOTAL REVENUE z

I Expenses:
Operation And Other Expenses 6 16,620
Depreciation -

TOTAL EXPENSES 16,620

1 PROFIT BEFORE TAX (16,620)

v Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax 2

Vv PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD (16,620)

As per our report attached

FOR SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

For VERITAS INFRA LLP
LLPIN : AAH-9198

> onDanglw
~~|SHABBIR S BAGASRAWALA C £5 =

PARTNER NITIN DIDWANIA VERITAS (INDIA) LTD

Membership No. : 039865 PARTNER AUTHORISED SIGNATORY

Place : Mumbai
Date: (5 -05- R0VF




VERITAS INFRA LLP

Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

Note : 1 Partner Fixed Contribution

Veritas (India) Ltd

AMOUNT AMOUNT
By Capital Introduced 999,999
To Balance C/D 999,999
999,999 999,999
Nitin Kumar
AMOUNT AMOUNT
By Capital Introduced 1
To Balance C/D 1
1 1




VERITAS INFRA LLP

Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2017

Note : 3 Long Term Borrowings

As At
March 37, 2017

Sr. No Particulars

1 Unsecured Loans
Loan from Partners 21,019

Total in Rs. 21,019

Note : 4 Trade Payables

Sr. No Particulars Asat
_March 31, 2017 |
i Sundry Creditors for Expense 6,600
Total in Rs. 6,600

Note : 5 Cash & Cash Equivalents

As At

March 31, 2017
1 |Cash On Hand -

Sr. No Particulars

2  |Balance With Banks
In Current Accounts 1,010,999

Total in Rs. 1,010,999




VERITAS INFRA LLP

tes Forming Integral Part of Profit & Loss Statement for year ended March 31, 2

Note : 6 Operation and other expenses

For the year
Sr. No Particulars ended
March 31, 2017
1 Incorporation Expense 12,020
2 Audit Fees 4,600
Total in Rs. 16,620




2.

ACCOUTING POLICIES

Corporate Information:

The LLP is engaged in the business of dealing in Agriculture & Agro products.

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

The financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost conventions,
on accrual basis of accounting to comply in all material respects.

(b) Use of Estimates:

(c)

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of incomes and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates
are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results
could differ from these estimates. Differences between the actual results and estimates are
recognized in the year in which the results are known/ materialized. Example of such
estimates includes provision for doubtful debts, employee benefits, provision for income
taxes and provisions for impairment etc.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the LLP and the revenue can be reliably measured.

i) Sale of goods:
Sales are recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer which coincides with delivery and are recorded net of trade
discounts, rebates, excise duties and VAT.

ii) Revenue from services :
Revenue from services rendered is recognized as and when the service is performed
based on agreements / arrangements with the concerned parties.

iii) Interest:
Interest income is recognized on time proportionate basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

iv) Dividend:
Dividend income from investment is recognized when the right to receive the same is
established.




(d) Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing cost that is attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets is capitalized as part of the cost of such assets till such time as the asset
that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All
other borrowing cost is recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(e) Taxation:

(f)

Current income tax expense comprises taxes on income from operations in India. Income
tax payable in India is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961.

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) paid in accordance to the tax laws, which gives rise to
future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is
considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the LLP will pay normal income
tax after the tax holiday period. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in the balance
sheet when it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with it will flow to
the LLP and the asset can be measured reliably.

Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognized on timing differences being the difference
between taxable incomes and accounting income that originate in one period and are
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

In the event of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses, deferred tax assets
are recognized only to the extent that there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available to realize such assets. In other situations, deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future
taxable income will be available to realize these assets.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet
after off-setting advance taxes paid and income tax provisions arising in the same tax
jurisdiction and where the LLP intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

The LLP offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if it has a legally enforceable
right and these relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets:

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be
an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed.
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the flr;_g_,pl;ﬁj_gl\ftatements.




(g) Cash & Cash equivalents:

The LLP considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into
cash and have original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be
cash equivalent




